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[PRES———

LETTER

FROM

THE SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR,

TRANSMITTING,

In respoiise to the resolution of the Senate of Docember 17, 1889, copies of
certain reports on the settlement of Oklahoma, etc.

JANUARY 15, 1800,—Referred to the Couunitti;e on Public Lands and ordered to be
printed,

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR,
Washington, January 10, 1890,
Str: I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of the resolution
of the Senate, dated December 17, 1889, as follows

Resolved, That the Secrelary of the Interior be directed 1o transmit to the Senate
copies of the various veports of Inspectors Picklor and MeBride on the settlement of
Oklahioma and the conduct of officers of the United States in permitting persons to
enter o Territory prior to the time speeified in the proclamation of the President
of the Hnited States. ‘

In response to the resolution I inclose herewith copies of the reports
named therein,
Very respectfully,
JOHN W, NOBLE,
The PRESIDENT OF THE SENATE. Secretary.

D E——

Un11eD 8TATES LAND OFFICH,

Guthrie, Ind, T., May 7, 15839

Diar Sire: Inclosed please find report in regard to action of ofticers in Oklahoma
Territory.
Very respecttully,

J. A, PICKLER,

Hon. Joun W, NopLk, Inspector Public Land Service,

Secretary Inlerior, Washinglon, D, C.

- trera——

GUTHRIE, April 27, 1889,
General Joun W, NOBLE,
Secretary of Interior:

Weo have the honor to respectfully report as follows :

About three hundred people were in and about Guthrie before 12 p. m, on the 22d
instant,  Two car loads arrived upon Sunday evening and wany were here upon
Saturday ; a few deputy marshals were in and about the town limits for a week or two
previous to the legal opening of the Territory, This body of men was composed of
deputy marshals, land oficials, vailroad employés, railroad stowaways brought here
il]] r'rg-igl]nt. traing, deputy internal-revenue collectors, and- a host swhich can not be:
classified, :

The firgt homestead entry was madeby Mark 8. Cohn, a personal friend of the re-
ceiver.  He gotin the land office under these circumstances: Three deputy marshals
surrounded the doors.  Col. D, B, Dyer, of the Wells-Fargo Express Company stood
W tho middle of the door-way at 12 m. One of these deputy marshals sprang in front

S, Ex, 5—26 ‘



2 SETTLEMENT OF OKLAHOMA.

of Colonel 'Dyer; the door opened, and this deputy permitted two men to pass him;

one was Cohn ard the otherJ, E. Dille, haif-brother of the register., Cohu entered

a homestead for Limself and filed threo declaratory statements for others; he also

presented a town plat, based upon a survey made before 12 m., and gotten up under

the direction of Col, W. H. Cllayton, of Fort Smith, Ark., another friend of the re-
ceiver, J, I, Dille, half-brother as aforesaid, was also one of the signers of this town
lat.

r The second ontry made was a homestend by said Jehu E, Dille; he also made 4
declaratory statement for his brother Jonathan Dille and for one James B. Kenner,
The three deputies who officiated at the land office were appointed af tho special re.
quest of the register and receiver (see Marshal Needles's list of deputies), and of these
three deputies two made declaratory statements through Cohn, the man whow they
wrongfully admitted. The lands entered by Cohn and Dille surround the town of
Guthrie, as will be seen by a plat herewith sent and marked lixhibit A.

Tu this conncetion we eall yonr attention to Marshal Needles's veport, showing that
Colonel Clayton, who got up the town-site plat which was filed by the aforesaid Colin,
was appointed depmty marshal at the request of Receiver Barnes, We make no con-
ment ; the record, plat, and facts speak for themselves, Witnesses to above facts:
(1) The records (2) Major Nelson, elerk of the United States court at Muscogee; (1D,
B. Dyer, mayor of Guilirie, attorney as aforesaid and a personal friond of Major War-
ner, of Kansas City, Mo.

Wo send you herewith two lists of deputy marshaly and entries so far wmade hy
them; we do not know that these are complete lists., The deputies shawncfully mis.
used their positions,  In behalf of Marshal Needles T desire to state that he gave ng
every aid in his power to discover frand or unfaivness,

Collector of the Kunsas district appointed a large number of deputies, to be called
upon if necesgary by Special Agent Clark, These appointnients were used to defrand
the bona fide settlers and in violation of law,

We will gend a supplemental report carly next week about these deputics, and give,
80 far a8 we can ascertain them, a list of names. G, W, Jones, one ol these depuaties,
was digtributing points freely to friends in Newton and Arkausas City,  Withess, F
W. Calais, general agent Champion Washing Machine Company, Joliet, 111,

Asono ot the marshals expressed it (o Captain MeAxthur, commandant of the post,
“Everybody bere is interested except you military nien,” Fhe undersigned have
held aloof from all factions, but found in Captain MeArthur a gentleman o integrity,
foresight, and high-minded purpose to discharge all his duties to the Government
without self-seeking,

Your telegrams have been prompily answered ; the delays woere not ours, but ciiused
by ineflicient telograph facilities, We have carried out your instructions in letfer
and gpirit. .

The hundred and one dnties performed to make matters a snccess here can not he
detailed in any report.  We were consnlted upon all govis of questions by the citi.
zons, and gave our aid, in connection with the commandant of the post, wherever it
wonld benefit the general public or tend 1o promote public peace and security,

Our telegras touching the quiet, orderly, and law-abiding spirit of this peopls
were accurately true and we repeat those reports, The people know that whatever
frand or unfairness may have been practiced, the Government is not a party to it, and
they have full confidence that complete justice will be done them in due time,  The
list of entries made by officialy and their friends does not include town lots, of which
no vecord is kopt.

Ae a matter of fact we know that depntics of all kinds hold town sites which they
are not fairly entitled to, and which were obtained by violating the President’s proc-
Inmation. Thisreport should have been gotton up in better form, hut we write under

_difficulties, and wiil supplement it if necessary. We had to go slow in our investiga-
tions and win {be contidence of the people who did not “stand in” with official
grabbing,

Respectfully submitted, CORNELIUS MACBRIDE,

- J. A, PicKLER,

Inspectors,

APRIL 27, 1850,
The SECRETARY INTERIOR:

I desire to add, in addition to the report herewith of Ingpector MacBride and niyself)
that I returned from Kingtisher Monday 22d; that when in about a mile of the sta-
tion Isaw tnany men on the east half of section 8; that as I neared the stationI
found they had been surveying and staking lots, but before I reached the place they
had dispersed, but were claiming lots as their own, “The land office opened promptly
at 12 o’clock, and Mark 8. Cohn and Jehu E, Dille entercd at once and ude the
filingsreferved to in'onrreport. I think these filings were all made before the arrival
of the train with settlers. ‘ ’

Very respectfully, J. A PICKLER:
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Exnisir A,
(Township 16; Range, 2 N, I. M.]

Seleotions,

Soldiers’ D, Soldiers' 1,
lﬁv y
Jehu E, Dille Jehu K. Dille

for

or
Jamos B, Kenner. Jonathan Dille,

Soldiers' D,
by
Mark 8, Cohn
or
Barry Twitchell,

Soldiera' D,
by
Marka, Cohn

or
James H. Huckle-
berry.

Mark 8. Cohn,
homestead.
First homestead en-
try of the day.
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Soldiers’ I;eoluratory,
Markfg Cohn

or
Benton Turner.

Jehu E. Dille
homestead.
Second homestead
entry of day.

It will be observed that Cohn, who it is understood comes from Fort Smith, the
receiver’s town, enters the town site, and he and Jehu E. Dille, half-brother of the.
register, cover seven quarter sections about the town.
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ExuiBIT B.

List furnished by Marshal Jones.

SETTLEMENT OF OKLAHOMA,

Dato of
Names. Place. appoint-
ment,
Capt. 0. 8. RAUCK . e ie vt iieeie ciaare i i ammar e s Guthrie........ ... 1881
CharlesCollins.................. R (R do oo 1586
Runaom Payne (homestead entry 7, April 23). ............. .. |..o... do . 1898
B O BT Y o 1 T e J [ R, 1RRG
Capt. W, J, Weaver (rej. 5, conflict 1. S, Guthrie)...... R DU [ 0 1880
B Y o v P PP DR do ..o 1¥88
JONN Pattora0n .o ocvviiiiae it iieneee e iianesneanecasnsevasens|envann [ 1889
A. G. Jones (homesteadd entry 5, April 23) ... [ 1 J 1850
James White ..o i o i i it ieenan Oklahoma «..oovveeaennn.. .. 1886
J. B. Koonte (homestead entry No. 260, Apl 27). . .. ... .. |..... AO e 1880
Aca Jones (homesiead entry 8, April 23, agent for Henry 8. |...... Ao veein i 1589
Cowen, doc. 8, appl. Cohn 'rejt, con. 1, S; agent for David A,
Harvey, No. 22, April 23, 10.45 a. m.
B TS 4} [ 7 R R Kingfisher...............0 1AR6
Captnint Wyl coiuniiioeniiiiarneiir et ee e ceearrcnenea] e A0 eenviee 1RN7
A28 PYR X5 o o'+ 1 O AR IS do oo 1874
B S T I 73 S DA Alfred . .ooeevenen oL, 18:0
JiP TODMINER vovver ceramrmanaanineer caamran e rnaaans e O 188
JaCK StIIWell.en et it i i e ern e e eanraaa Parlington ............ .... 1086
3 171§ T Near Purcell (1) .......o.c )i,
ExHiBiT C,
List of deputies appointed by T. B. Needles, marshal Indian Territory.
[Matter in brackets written in pencil in oviginal.]

Muécogee. Remarks.
W, W. Ansley .ocovnivnnaeinmaaaniana, On duty at Kingfisher.
William Forman On duty at Muscogee.
David Adams .cononiaiaetcnt e i i et e aia o cnaa e aaaiaaan D

Jobn G. Varnumn [lrej. 27, A;lyril 27 conflict with homestead
entry, James Adams, April 24). : :
Thomas Wright.. .. .coo i i et iaineanaann
JoARe ADKIMIG. .o voiiirnn i iriiinnsimrrssnnnameaneenen,
W J, WHKIINB cauvnn iiinan et i ceaaaiacarenracnacaasmncannns
T.J Mitts ... e mme e eieaae et

Temp. Elliott [conflici prior homestead entry, A. (. Jones,
April 23, and 8. D. 8. 17, April 22].

Thormas J, Taylor [Doc. 31, homeéstead entry rejected, con.
flict homeatead entry 1, April 22, Mark S. Cohn).

Daniel Hay ..o i e ieerecae e,

*Jasper N. Reece [::omﬂict with homestead entr% 3. H. W,
Wolcott, con. 'T. 8, Guthrie, agent for James T. Bell, re-
jected No. 1, John C. Bell, rejected 2,agent for H. N,
Baker, No,21 (8. D.8.)].

*John (. Bell {rejected 2, conflict ‘I. £, Guthrie, not square]..

Jacoh Wheeler.......... .. et cesness Geaesnanbancacenn
RBenton J. Turner [8. 1), 8.1, by ageut Mark 8. Cohn] ......

J. H. Hackleberry [8. D. § No. 2, Mark 8. Cohn, agent] .. .. §
O.E, Mobhler. ... . i iiiteaiaanes canaaaians

SoItth Winters coeeeevitieeiirieiioanvcrsnsenacancaennsan,
Fd.Colling .......cco.cueians erebmaeseeaniaratnnanhacaaeans
Geor%e L.McDonaugh ...... e innan Neensevieraesieaddais
[N 75 11} 1 1 ¢ TR A DRI cassany
W. H.H.Clayton {12 m., April 22, T.8.)....ovviiiriiiiina

0.
On duty at Guthrie.

On duty
D

at Oklahoma City,

0.

On duty at Norman,

On diIl)ty at Guthrie.
0,

Do.

?
Po
Do

Do.
On duty at Edmonds.

Appointed at special request of register
and receiver and on daty at land office,

Appointed at special request of town

authorities of
On duty at

ast Guthrie,
Kingfisher.

On duﬁ,y at Kdmonds,

-Do.
At request of receiver.

“ Reece and Bel! to open boarding-house for United States officers.

I certify that the foregoing is correct.

‘

T. B.' NEEDLES,
Marshal Indian Territory



SETTLEMENT OF OKLAHOMA. 5

Perry Twitcebell, No. 3, by Mark 8. Cohn, agent, filed April 22, 1.05 p. m.; No. 4,
Jonathan Dille, by John E, Dillez agent, filed April 22, 1.05p. m.; No, 5, James B.
Kenner, by John E. Dille, agent, filed April 22, 1.30 p. m.; T. 8. 12 m., Mark 8. Cohn,
April ¥2, John E, pllle. o .

In the written list of marshals’ names yon will find notes made by the land office
clerks showing the attempted or successtul actions of said marshals touching home-
steads and 8. declarations, most of the marshals, however, are interested only in
town lots,—C. M. o ) ‘

Also append liss showing deputy marshals making entries, )

In the foregoing list of deputy marshals the fol )pwing of their number made or at
tempted to make entries of land, and a ml{nl)er of them are claimmg town lots, but.l
as there isas yet no veeord of town Jots claimed, wo arc unable to give the names of
guel ax are holding sueh lots, and they can very readily change the apparent owner-
ship, rendering it difficult to fix it. .

Those making or attempting to make entries are as follows:

[Neadles,]

Davil Adams, on duty at Muscogee, homestead rejected April 24; in conflict with
Lomesteaud-entry, James Adams, April 24,

T.J. Mitts, ou duty at Guthrie; conflict prior homestead entry A. G. Jones, April
93, and soldier’s declaratory 17, April 22,

Temp Elliott, on duty at Guthrie; docket 37; homestead entry rejected; conflict
homestead sntry 1, April 22, Mark S. Cohn.

Thomas Hay, on duty at Gathrie; conflict with homestead entry of H, W, Wolcott
and town site of Guthrie,

Jagper N. Reece, agent James F. Bell, rejected ; agent John C. Bell, rejected ; agent
for H. N, Baker, No. 21 8. D. §,, rejected ; conflict witl town site Guthrie.

Benton J. Turner, 8. D. 8., by agent, Mark S, Colin.

J. I Hucekleberry S, D. 8, No. 2, Mark 8. Cobn.

0. E. Mobler signed applicatiou for town site.

W. H. H. Clayton signed town site application,

[Jones.)

Ransome Payne, at Guthrie, homestead entry, April 23.

Capt. W, G, Weaver, rejected ; conflict town site Guthrie.

James B, Koonte, homestead enivy, April 27, :

Asu Jones, brother of marshal, camo to Guthrie April 15 and remained, homestead
entry =, April 23, Agent for Henry 8. Conner, rejected; conflict town site. Agent
David N. Harvey, April 23,

NO FAVORITES—SKECRETARY NOBLES' PROMISKE—COMPLAINTS OF UNJUST CLAIM TAK-
ING TO BE LOOKED INTO—FAIR DEALING TOWARD SETTLERS IN GOOD FAITH SURE
==SPECIAL EFFORTS 1O BE MADE TO BETTLE OKLAHOMA CASHES—INDIANS REPORT-
ED 70O BE PREPARING FOR THE INEVITABLE—THE SENTIMENT (N FAVOR OF A
GENERAL OPENING GROWING-—GUTHRIE AND KINGFISHER BOTH THE SCENES OF
LIVELY BUT PEACLABLE BUSTLE—EVERYTHING BEING DONE WITH DUE RREGARD
TO 1AW AND ORDER—SETTLERS PLOWING THEIR LANDS—INCIDENTS AND QUAR-
RELS OVER CLAIMS. ’

WASHINGTON, D, C., 4pril 25.

Immediately upon the receipt here of press reports that Government officials and
otliers temporarily in Governrueut employ in Cklahoma had used their authority as
such officials to secure prior rights in lands in the Territory in disregard of the rights
of others, the President and Secretary Noble telegraphed to special agents of tho
Departiient now in the Territory to make a thorongh and prompt investigation of
the fucts in the case aud upon its completion to immediately notify tho Secretary of
their findings, A veport is expected during the week. ‘

Inspeaking of the matter Secretary Noble said that not the least shadow of an in-
Justice 1o settlers in Oklahoma would be tolerated for a moment, and that assoon as
the facts in the case could be ascertained if officials were found to have been impli-
cated in any attempted injustice or wrongdoing the action of the Government in the
matter would be very prompt and decisive,
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ATTENDING TO OKLAHOMA CONTESTS.

Commissioner Stockslager, of the General Land Office, to-day said that from present
indications the coutests over land claims in Oklahoma would ultimately involve
nearly every quarter section in that Territory. This being the case, he thought it
probable that the Department would make the Oklaboma contest cases n separate
class and dispose of them at once. Otherwise, in the ordinary course of business it
would likely be eighteen months or two years before they could be reached,  Coniests
in which abandonment is charged could not be passed upon until the expiration of
8ix months, as the law did not recognize a separation of the claim for a shorter period
than six months as abandonment. But cases in which fraud or violation of law or
the President’s proclamation in going into the Territory prior to April 22 could he
tried and disposed of at once,

Internal revenue collectors at Guthrie: Dan Basure, 1. M. Jones, II. M. Yetor,
—— Ragsdale (banker), ——-— McLane, Vaoefe, Dave Hamnol,

GurHRIE, May 3, 1330,
General JouN W, NOBLE,
Secretary of Interior Department :

We have the honor to submit the following report :

Collector Acres, of Kansas, is responsible.for more deputies who have acquired Iands
and town lots in this Territory than both of the marshals put together.  He was in.
structed by the Internal Revenue Commissioner to designate certain men from whom
Special Agent Clark could select, when cucasion required, internal revenne depu-
ties. He degignated an unknown number. Not one of these men reported to Clurk;
and they were only deputies to the extent of having authority to entor the Terrvitory
before 12 ru., on the 22d ultimo ; and they thereby acquired town lots and other ad-
vantages.

Major Clark informs us that no list of these wen were promised him and from what
he has seen and heard would not employ one of them if a list were furnished.  In.
spector MacBride called upou Agent Clark last week and requested alist of the men
designated by Collector Acres for internal revenue purposes. Clark said he had
never seen one of the men, did not know their names, and that Deputy Zates, who
was in Kingfisher, had the list. Zates is Acere’s representative here.  Upon Zate's re-
turn from % ugfisher, MacBride called upon him and requested the list.  He denicid
having one und replied to all (questions in parrot fashion “ I have no list.”

MucBride said, ‘Do you understand thefact to be that 1 ¢charge that your otlice has
flooded this town with alleged deputies who came here before 12 m. on the 220 of
April; and that they thereby acquired property in violation of the President’s procla-
mation,” He coolly replied, ‘‘1 understand you, but I have no list.” MacBride then
said, ¢ Canyon procure me the list ¥”7  He answered, ¢ I don’t know.” His manner,
voiee, and conversation indicated, “ Find ont if you can.” Wae sent you a partial list,
furnished by Marshal Needles, of these deputies, but know there are mary more.
Many who came here as deputy collectors now deny they ever were deputies, hut the
faet remaing that the men who came here with Rogers (mentioned in o previous re-

port), and Zates, occupy some of the most valuable property in the town, And the
further fact is that the Democratic vfficials who believe they are going out of offlee,
do not care, seemingly, o fig what the Department thinks or charges in the premises,
Acres may be madeto give a list through the proper department; but it will doubt-
less be only a partial list, and there is now no way to ascertain its correctness; Ve are
satisfied that Marshal Jones’s list of deputies does not contain the names of all s ap-
pointees; for instance, we discover that C. 8. Rogers, a town-lot speculator, is a dep-
uty of hig, aud his name was not furnished us, We know there are more s, huf they
now deny they ever were deputies, and there is no record method of proving the con-
trary. ‘

However, your prompt action scared the deputies of all classes und they ave seek
ing t%xleir holes and in a few days they will utterly disappear as factors in the situa-
uion here,

Pablic confidence has been restored by your action; the deputy wmarshal question
has subsided and will not hereafter be an issue except in a few contest cases. C(uth-
rie is a city of at least 6,000 males, representing an unknown population; the city
-anthorities are being backed in a square manner by the Federal anthorities here and
have the contidence of the people. They have surveyed the town and are clearing
the streets und policing the entire city. v

Houses and streets appear as if by enchantment. City prices now prevail in hotels
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and restaurants, and the buying and selling of real estate proceeds as if the city had
been settled years ago.

Bath-houses, barber-shops, street sprinklers, auctioneers, and even an opera house
have appeared upon the scene and actaally seem indigenous to tho soil.

Captain MeArthur and Marshal Needles have acted with great discretion, and too
much praise can not be given them for maintaining good order. The sound of thp
hammer and saw are hoard on every side, and lnrge buildings are geing up on Harri-
son_avenuo, and Noble street, and Capitol Hill street, ete.  Kinglisher is quiet, or-
derly, and law abiding. There are no complaints from this point. Thesamo is true
of Okluhoma. A more snceossful opening of a new Territory could not be conjured up
by the imagination of man; and it will not be long ere the United States forces will
find themselves without ocenpation in Oklahoma.

Our first impressions and reports of the people are coufirmod by each day’s develop-
ments, and we again repeat that this scene is the greatest trinmph of Ameorican ¢ivil-
jzation,

Very respecttully, your obedient servants, _
CorNeLtus MacBripe,
J. A. PICKLER,
Inspectors Public Land Service.

UNITED STATES LAND QFFICE,
Guthrie, ind. T., May 3, 1880,

Drer Sir: We would respectfully submit, the following report: That we visited

the land office at Kingfisher on the first and second days of this monii; that we find

. the business of the office proceoding in an orderly aund commendable manner, and
satisfactorily to the parties interested ; that we find no complaints of deputy mar-
shals or other officials making entries of land contrary to law or to the detriment of
settlers; that the question of the town site is being aniotly, and as appears satis-
factorily, adjusted.

The best of order prevails, and the citizens declare they have nover lived in a more
orderly or quiet community, nor where they felt a greater security of person and
property.

Very respectfully,
CORNEILIUS MACBRIDE,
J. A. PICKLER,
Inspectors of the Publio Land Service,
Hou, JOoHN W. NOBLE,
Sceretary of the Imterior, Washington, D, C.

[

Gurhrig, IND. T., May 8, 1889,
Hou, Joun W. NOBLE, ’
Seeretary Interior, Washington, D. C. : R

In regard o charges againss W. C, Jones, United States marshal, many settlers in
Oklahoma Territory complain as follows:

(1) 'That the said Marshal Jones, with a large numboer of deputy marshals, entered
Okluhoma Territory before noon April 22, 1889, as such oflicers, and being so in said
Territory at noon of said day, immediately after hour of noon on said day, settled
upon and claimed ownership in valuable town lots in towns of said Territory, and
scttled 1ipon valuable lands, to the great prejudics and detriment of settlers who
ubesad the President’s proelamation as to t{m time of entering said Territory,

(2} That said Marshal Jones, with his deputy marshals, have illogally used their
authority as such officers to protect their own holding of lots and land, and to pre-
vent settlers from occupying lots and lands which thoy woere legally entitled to do.
Tending to establish the-foregoing charges, we find the following stato of facts at
Oklahoma City, Ind, T, ,

The Seminole Town and Improvement Company, a corporation of the State of
Kansas, as is claimed, of which J, E, Frost, of Topeka, who is land comtuissioner, or
conneeted with the land department of the Atchison, Topeka and Santa ¥é Railway
Company, was the leader, and who claims to be the general manager of the ¢orpora-
tion in Oklahoma Territory, and who did manage forthe company at- Oklahoma
City, and L. H. Crandell, secrotary of said company, together with United States
Marshal W. ¢, Jones and a syndieate from Newton, Kans., who it is believed is a part
of ovinterested in the Seminole Town and I'm provement Company, entered the pres-
ent town site of Oklahoma City at or before noon of April 22 and secured for them-
selves and friends a large number of the best and choicest lots in said town.
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To sustain this we refer to D, D. Britton, present sheriff of Allen County, Kuns,,
who states that at the requnest of bis friend, Samuel Baker, of Marshal City, Kans., i
deputy marshal of Mr. Jones’s, who had expected to act with Jones as deputy. in Ok.
Iaboma but could not, he (Britton) concluded, in order to see tho settlement of the
country, to request the appointment of Jones as one of his deputies, and to this e
joined Marshal Jones on the train from Arkansas City south on Sunday, April 2f,
189, ‘

That while passing through the Cherokee strip he (Britton) requested the appoint.
meint (1(' Marshal Jones, but Jones replied he hmP enongh deputies and could not up-

oint him.
P Upon nearing Oklahoma City, however, Jones told Britton to get off the train and
report to his (Jones) deputy, J. B, Kuhns, who with other deputies were then camped
at Oklahoma City, saying that he (Jones, would appoint him for four or five days and
give him a commission during the time.

Britton says that on same train was Frost, mapager of S8eminole Town Compuny,
and 8id Clarke, of Topeka; that thess two with Marshal Jones were much in con-
sultation during the trip, and all stopped at Oklaboma City and there remained
until after the 22d.

That he (Britton) reported to Deputy Marshal Kuhns, and that at that time Fwery
White, George E. Thornton, and Asa Jones were with Kuhuos acting as deputy mar.
shal for Jones at Oklahoma City.

That he understood that George E. Thornton had been forseveral monthsa pastact.
ing in this capacity in that locality, That, on the forenooun of the22d, Marshal Jones
ordered Britton, with the other deputies, to wateh for partics who might be attempt.
ing to settle on tracts of land near the town before 12 o’clock,

At 11 o’clock a. m. of said 22d he saw Marshal Jones on railroad right of way near
town, and from half past 12 to 1 o’clock he saw him in the town.

Marshal Jones took, and claimed as his own, one of the mmost valuable lots in (he
town of Oklaboma City, corner of Main and Broadway, and the three deputies,
Thornton, White, and Kuhns, above referred to each settled upon quarter sections ot
land adjoining or immediate to the town site.

Jones afterward retused to give Britton a commission,

Corroborated by records of land office; also by Deputy Marshal Goorge F. Thorn-
ton, Oklahoma City, By D. R. Beatty, Okluhoma City, whom Jones told he was ut.
Oklahoma City at 12 o’clock, April 22, Also . P. Walker, who traveled across the
country on the 22d from the southwest, and was one of the first to arrive, reaching
Oklaboma City about 1. 30 p. m., some time before the first train arrived, and M-
shal Jones was the first man he saw ; and Jones was staking oft his corner lot ahove
referred to. K

Walker also_talked with ¥Frost, of the S8eminole Town Company, with whom he wus
acqnainted. Frost said he was the manager of the Seminole Town Company in
Okﬂahnma Territory, and that their company was interested with parties who worked
it through Congress; that his company had the town sites of Norman and Edmond,
and Frost offered Walker the agency of the S8eminole Company at Oklahoma City if
he (Walker) would abandon the “boys” who came in with him (Walker), and who
were also surveying the town site. Saw Frost and Marshal Jones together, Ivost
said the company expected to get their monsy by issning certificates to settlers, (Neo
certificate of said company to Arnold Braundley, marked A, herewith transmitted.)

Also J. L. Brown, who found about the 23d or 24th of April a man occupyiog the
lot selected by Marshal Jones, and he (Brown) knowing nothing of Jones’s claim pur-
chased the right of the occupant of the lot for $110. Afterward Jones came with his
deputies, and after a quarrel and removal by Jones of Brown's improvement from the
lot and a continuance of the controversy for several days, Brown sold out to Jones
to avoid further altercation for what he had expended in procuring the lot, amount-
ing to about $300, The lot is estimated to be worth $1,000.

Also J. H. McCartney, Oklahoma City, who heard a controversy between Marshal
Jones and Browa concerning the lot in which Jones said he ought to have the lot,
that he helped pay for the survey (presumably the Seminole survey, as this was a lot
of that survey) and was entitled to something.

Also W. F. Higgil and J, M. McCormack, of Oklahoma City, who saw at about 3
o’clock p. m, the 22d, blue prints, large plats of Oklahoma City prepared by the Semi-
nole Town and Improvement Company, upon which among othiers wore certain streets
named as follows: Frost, Couch, Sommers, Peck, and Noel. o
This Rrint, of course, was prepared before coming to Oklahoma by this company.
Also R. B, Ward, who, between 1 and 2 o'clock p. m, of 22d, found one Quinton, ono
of Jones's deputies, of Topeka, alone, watching and claiming four or five good lots
for himself atid, as he said, his friends who were not thers. Ward proposed to take
one of the lots for himself, hut Quinton would uot allow it and threatened violence
if Ward attempted to settle on the lot and stating that hé was a deputy marshul,
and thus holding the lots. Quinton has since disposed of some of the lots.
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Also Lieuteuant Adair, Fifth United States Cavalry, and Corporal Thomas O’Brien,
Fifth United States Cavalry, I. Troop, Captain Furbush's Company, both now camped
at Okluhoma City, who state there were, previous to the 22d, thirty-two United
States depuly marshals who came to and stopped at Oklahoma City, by rail, twelve
of whom held commissions or what purported to be commissions signed by Thomas B.
Necdles, marshal, and the remainder or nearly all having commissions or what pur-
ported to be commissions signed by Marshal Jones,

As to the speculative nature of these town-site transactions as bearing upon these
sharges: :
( D. 1. Beatty, of Okluhoma City, late of Kansas City, wlio states that before leav-
ing Kansas City, his friend, W, H. Whiteside, hanker, 13 West: Ninth street, told him
(Beatty) to see Marshal Jones and Dr. Rodgers, when he got to the Territory, and
that thoy would put him in the way of making some money. That upon arriving at
Guthric he suw Marshal Jones with a Captain Dawson, who was with him (Beatty).
That he (Beatty) talked with Jones about procuring land and entering or establish-
ing a town site at Alfred, Jones said he would with the parties with whom he was
acting o into it.  Jones advised that homesteadersshonld be fonnd who eould make
enrly proofs, and that a contract should be entered jnto with these parties for the
purchase of their lands by one member of the town company, and that it any difficulty
should arise coneerning the matter, that the member of the company having knowl-
edge of the affair could be sent out ¢* the country, so that no evidence of the trans-
action could be had. Jones said he and Rodgers were looking nfter tho interests of
their company in Oklaboma, and deing all they could to advance ity interests,

Beatty seems to be a veliable man, intelligent and gentlemanly, and claims that he
has heen badly treated by Jones at Oklahoma City, and that he believes Jones is
secking 1o beat settlers, and that he therefore has made the above stutement.

Wonld also under this head refer to certificate ot Seminole Town and Improve-
ment Company, hereto attached, marked A, mado to Arnold Brandley. This company
first songht to charge settlers $25 for issuing this certificate, but now charge $10,
which Brandley paid for this, They are requiring all settlers on this survey of the
town to pay this amount. It will be observed that no amount is recited in this cer-
tificnte although $10 was paid. (See oath D required.) In this connection U. H,
Violet, police judge of Oklahoma City, states that Manager I'rost told him (Violet)
that the company expectod to derive their revenue from issning these certificates, and
Judge Violet states that his estimate of the number of lots in the Seminole survey
was upwards of 3,000,

Also, B, B, Studley, Newton, Kans,, the contractor who put up forty houses for the
Newton syndicate, all framed at Newton and shipped at a day early enough, so that
the houses were unloaded fifteon at Guthrie and remainder at Oklahoma City on
Monday afternoon of the 22d, and many of them placed on the best lots that afternoon
al the Iatter place.  Also, Amos (irayhill, one of the carpenters working under Stud-
ley, to same effect.

Ol this Newton syndicate were Gilbert and Son (Gilbert now in bank at Oklahoma
City), Samuel Lehman, Fox Winnie, James Geary (in bank at Oklahoma City), David
Hamil, €. R, McLean, Walkenstoin, and Ragsdale. Also, to statement hereto
attaclied of Frank Foster, J. I, Ellis, and (+, H. Hoop, as to the building of these
honses, us to the time survey was made by this Seminole Town Site Company, it being
the only company whoso surveyors were in town on forenoon of Monday, 22d,
(marked lixhibit ©),

Also, refer to statement of the situation and thoe facts that can be established as set
forth in letter of James 1% Harrison, esq., to Secretary of the Interior, a copy of
which was shown Inspector Pickler.

A'rm tlo report of Inspector MacBride this day upon this subject and facts therein
set forth,

Suwmmarizing.—The people feel that Marshal Jones, a resident of Kansas and not a
bona fide settler, with his deputies and with influential parties in the Atchison, To-
pekaand Santa K6 Railway Company, and other speculators, unfairly gained en-
trance to the forbidden Territory and fraudulontly gained great advantages over the
honest settler, and tlhus secured the most valuable property, while those who oheyed
the Inw are beaten by the lawsbreakers in the race.  And ‘to this conclusion all fair-
winded, honest men are forced. The people have faith that the Government will
right this wrong, I'o this end all its ofiicers who have participated in these frauds
against the rights of the peoplo should be promptly dvalt: with. So the General
Land-Office should officially declare what violations of the law admitting Oklahoma
Tervitory to settlement and violations of the President’s proclamation will, when
proven, he additional grounds to those heretofore oxisting of contest.

To await until these matters ave presented in actual cases and these grounds de-
termined in such a manner by the Commissioner of the Gteneral Land Oftico and the
Secretary of the Interior is to involve this people in a multitude of expensive cou
tests which they are generally illy able to enter. S
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Further, some rules or directions should be provided by the General Laund Office as
to how parties desiring to contest settlements upon town lots, in these town sites,
:shall initiate a coutest, where file it, and what proceedings shall be taken to preserve
the rights of both claimant and contestant to such town lots, until the Government,
shall iu sowe way determine in what wanner the title to these towwn sites shall he
perfected,

These suggestions are hourly forced upon one upon the ground and the necessity of
some such rules or regulations becomes more imperative every day. -

In these suggestions Inspector MacBride concurs,

Referring to the twelve parties holding commissions from Marshal Needles, at Okl
homa City, referred to above by Licutenant Adair, Inspector Pickler this day called
upon said Marshal Needles for an explanation of the same, and My, Needles positively
denies the issuance ot such commissions and pronounces them traudulent, and there
is herewith submitted Marshal Needles's stutement and denial, marked Lxhibit I,
and this stutement Inspector MacBride and the undersigned accept as true.

Marshal Needles has ever been ready to furnish evidence in our examination of
matters, and no case has boen found where he has claimed an interest in any property,

Mention is made in acknowledgment of vainable assistance afforded the nundee-
signed in investigations at Oklahoma City by Colonel W ade, comwmanding the troons
at that place, to John Voss, esq., of Girard, Kans., now at Oklahoma City (refers to
First Assistant Secretary Chmxdi’er), and O. H. Violet, police judge of that place.

All of which is respecttully submitted.

J. A. PICKLER,
Inspector of the Public Lands Service,

ExHIBIT A,
[No. 116.]
THE SEMINOLE TOWN AND IMPROVEMENT COMPANY OF KANSAS,

For value received the Seminole Town and Improvement Company hereby sells
aud relinquishes to Arnold Brandley all right, title, and interesis that it now has or
may hereafter acquire in and to lot No. 4 of block No. 19 in Oklahoma City, ind,
T., in accordance with said town company’s plat and survey thereof, and this certificy
the said Arnold Brandley is this day in possession and the occupant of that said lot,

THE SEMINOLE TOWN AND IMPROVEMENT COMPANY.

[seAL.] By L. H. CraNDELL, Secrelary.

APRIL 27, 1889, ,

Exuisir C.
OKLAHOMA, May 5, 1839,

My name is Frank Foster. I have worked at this place since the 8th of tast Angust,
I wag in the employ of J. . McGranahan, who was the postmaster, and kept a
boarding-house prior to the 22d of April, the day of the opening of Oklahoma, T was
Lere on the 22d day of April, before 12 o’clock noon, and saw men sarveying or stuk-
ing ground in the present town site of Oklahoma before the hour of noon. There
were as many as five or six in the party, but I did not go out where they were, nud
do not know their names,

Afttest :
BEN CRAYOREFT,
R. l{ MANSUR,.

FrANK Tosrer,

My name is J. P, Ellis. I have heen in the employ of H. L. Bickford, a (Giovern-
ment- contractor in the Oklahoma country, for the past fifteen months, and have
been at the present site of Oklahoma City for the past three montbs, 1 was here on
the morning of the opening, and remained here until after 12 o’clock on that day.
There were meén sncrveying on the present site of Oklahoma City as carly as 10
o’clock a. m. on the 22d day of April. There were a number of people herc at that
time, and as many as five or six seemed to be interested in and making the survey,
They carried a chain and compass. Mauy lots were staked along what'is now Main
street, with stakes having papers fastened to thewm; before noon of that duy. 1do
not know the nawes of the parties who were here, but I know the faces of several
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of them, who are still hero, and whom I see frequently. I know the faces, and could
point out two men, who now claim lots on Main street, who were here before noon

on tho 224 of April, A, D. 1889,
J. P. ELuis,

Attest:
BN CRAYCROFT.
R. H. MANSUR.

My name is G. A. Hoop. I reside at Newton, Kang. I am a carpenter by trade and
wusemployed at Newton, Kans., by B. 17, Studley, who I then understood was the fore-
man for a company who were ¢coming {rom Newton to Oklahoma. There were ten car-
penters employed there and wo cut out the Tumber for forty small huildings ready to
put to-gether before we left Newton, and this muterial so prepared was shipped herve.
Upon arriving we were instructed by the foreman to at once commence tho erection of
these buildings, which we did, and the first day workegd until 7 o’clock, in the evening.
Some complaint was made about working over hours or after 6 o’clock, when Mr, Stud-
ley, the foreman, informed us that we would get extra pay tor extra time.  After we ..

- quit work some of the carpenters commenced talking about going out to locate lots for
themsolves, Mr. Studley then told us they (whom I understood to bo the company
we were working for) were going to tako lots in our numes and would give us one-
third of whatever sun the lots might sell for.  We kicked a little against this, think-
ing we ought to have lots of our own, Then Studley informed usg that ¢ they” said
we were doing good work for them an@l they had a lot staked out for each of us and
to just go ahead'with our work, Near the last of the first week [ spoke to Fox
Winnie about the lots and he thew told me thoy were going to try to get us all a lot
apiece, but he did not know whether they could succeed as they seemed to be nearly
all tuken.  We again asked the foreman last week about our lots and he told us there
were no lots for us; that he did not even get one for himself.  Weo quit Friday evening,
May 3, at least the most of us di.  We quit at 6 o’clock. They had been boarding
uy, but did not even give us our supper when we quit.  They never paid us anything -
for extra work. We put up about forty buildings for them in this place. I o not
know who compose the company, but Mr, James Geary seemed to be in charge of the
buginess and to be taking most anthority. I also talked to Fox Winnie, and he talked
as if he was one of the party, and in talking of lots for us used the expression ¢ we?”
in speaking of what they could and could not do. 1 havoe heard Geary claim a lot
in the name of a man whomn 1 know had not been here at that time,

G. A. Hoor.

ExHisiT D,

OxranoMA City, Indian Tervitory,ss :

i, , being duly sworn according to law, upon oath state that I am an actual
settler upon lot No. ——, block No, ——, in said Oklahoma City, asshown by the plat
of the Seminole survey, or that I have taken said lot for the purpose of making
sihstantial improvements thereon; thut no other person holds any adverse claim to
said lot, or has adverse possession thereof, but that I am in undisputed possession of

aaid lot,
Subseribed and sworn to before me this —— day of , 1880,

CXHIBIT E,
GurHRIE, IND. T., May 8, 1889,

S1R : Inreply to your inquiry as to the number of deputy marshals I had stationed
al Oklahoma City ou or before the 22d of April, I desive to say that, as before reported
to Mr. L{(:Bridc, I had only two, viz, Messrs, Wright and Ankram, I state this most
positively, :

If any other person or persons represented themselves as having been appointed by
me or were there acting or pretending to be deputy United States marshals by m
anthority they were impostors and frauds, If in your investigation you can furnis
me with the names of any such parties I will spare uo effort or expense in prosecut-
ing them to the utmost limit of the law, ;

Respecttully, : ' - '
. T. B. NEEDLES,
Marshal, Ind. T.
J. PICKLER, Esq., ~
United States Inspector,
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Charges against Marshal Jones, ete., May 8, 1.889.

N - GuTtHRIE, IND, T., May 8, 1850,

Sir: I respectfully submit the following report :

Many things are true against United States officials Liere which can not be proven
in the absence of compulsory process to compel the attendance of withesses and o
competent tribunal aunthorized to take testimony. The frauds perpetrated againsg,
the bona fide settlers of Olklahoma should be investigated by a Congressional con-
mittee, with full powers to send for persons and papers,

It is difficult to obtain actual proof of frauds about the perpetration of which I am
morally certain, because there are so many jobbing rings here held together by the
‘“ cobhesive power of public plunder;” and for every proof obtained which we now
present we have had to prick a thousand bubbles,

The atmospherie condition of things here on and before the R2d day of April seemed
to impel men, heretofore honest and honorable, to grab, cateh, and hold everything
in sight. Much allowance is to be made in judging men who acted under great ex.
citement and in the presence of new couditions and a general seramble never before
witnessed upon this earth.

More or less injustice was inevitable, but it is a melancholy traah that United
States deputy marshals and deputy collectors caused more trouble, more friciion,
and perpetrated moro wrongs caleulate:l {o disturb the public peace than all the other
citizens of Oklahoma put together,

I now proceed to specific reports, premising that I present ouly a fair sample of the
general conduct of said oflicials,

Respectfully,
CORNELIUS MACBRIDIE,
Inspector.
Hon. JoUN W. NOBLE,
Secretary of the Interior.

GUTHRIF, May 8, 183,
CHARGES AND SPRECIFICATIONS AGAINST MARSHAL JONES, OF KANSAS,

(1) He is the avowed owner of one of the best lots in Guthrie, which he located
beforel2m. on the 22d of April.  "Witnesses: Inspectors Pickler and MacBride, Marshal
Needles, Deputy Marshal John Patterson.

(2) His deputy marsbals are all the holders of lots Jocated in violation of the Presi-
dent’s proclamation. Particulars: Depnty Keys has three houses on two lots ou the
main street of the town; Deputy Collinsg has several lots. Witnesses: 8. Devoe,
G. W. Pulse, Dr, W, M, Davis.

(3) His deputies were, with his krowledge, locating lots in Guthrie and Oklahoma
before 12 m. on April 22, Particulars: Deputy Marshal Patterson located four
lots for Marshal Jones’s brother, ¢ ALL” Jones, on the morning of the 27th ultino,
Witness: Jones’sown deputy, John Patterson, M. J. Keys, deputy of Marshal Jouee,
- was locating lots from sun up on Monday morning, the 22d of April,  Same witness,

Deputy Marshal Ranson Payne entered a valuable section of land near Guthrie, and
has been in rows all over towu abont lots: in one case destroying a man’s lumber and
threatening him with his pistol; in another case “‘jumping” a man’s lot and putting
up a house, Witnesses: Mr. W, Colton and wife, Guthrie, D. S, Mitehell, Gutlhirie,
Murs. Lotta Simmons desired to procurea lot. She was advised to cal-upon Marshal
Jones. She didso. Hecalledupon Deputy Payne and sent him with her. Paynelo-
cated her on the back part of a lot belonging toMr. D, Blubaugh, He charged her $10Ha
month and demanded also w room in the house she proposed to build,  Witnesses :
Mrs. Simmons, D. Blubaugh, A. A, Ritter, Guthrie. On Thuarsday preceding the 22d
of April, Marshal Jones bad four deputies in Oklahoma Territory, to wit : His brother,
Al. Jones, Keys, Payne, and Havrick., Witness: W, D. Chamberlin, Guthrie, Dep-
uty Weaver was arrested for destroying property of Hon. €. W, Constantine and
claiming his lot. Witnesses: Hon. . W. Constantine and City Register Ford,
Guthrie. Weaver has algo entered a quarter section near Gushrie, Witness: The
1and office record, '

(4) Marshal Jones has been active in dealings with all the real estate brokers of
Guthrie. He and bis deputy, C. S. Rogers, had about 3 dozen tents consigned to
them ; these wore all located npon lots,  Witness: Deputy Patterson,

(5) Depnty John Patterson is the ex-sherift of Cowley County, Kans. He was
in the Territory engaged in building the Guthrie depot. He knew the Jay of the land.
He was approached by one of Marshal Jones's deputies and offered. a cemmission on
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account of his local knowledge. He was locating lots all Monday worning of the 22d
of April upon the understapdmg that when ‘¢ the storia blew over”” there would be a
general division of the spoils, This witness claims to know the inside details of the
whole scheme and states that Le can prove before a competent tribunal that there ex-
isted & conspiracy between Jones and his deputies to grab everything in sight, Ad-
dress: Deputy Marshal John Patterson, Guthrio.

(6) Jones did not furnish us with a correct list of his deputies,

(7) Marshal Jones expeets to be removed.  Witness : Marshal Needles,

In concluding Marshal Jones’s case desire to state that there are a hundred circum-
gtances which would come out upon an exmmination under oath to corroborate the
foregoing statements,  Major Pickler will furnish additional report,

Respectfully submitted.

CORNELIUS MACBRIDE,
Inspector.

IN THE MATTER OF MARSHAL NEEDLES,

GUTHRIE, IND, 'T'., May 8, 1889,
Marshul Needles's doputies are all either claiming quarter sections or town lots.
Dan Way claims alot for himself and one for Needles, Way is Necdles’s chief deputy.
Witnesses : Mather & Geary, attorneys, Guthrie; I A. Sampson, grocer, fiuthrie,
Touching his deputios owning orelaiming lots and lands located in violation of law :
Pickler and MacBride and L. G. Goft, contractor and builder, Guthrie.- Deputy
Metts received with a partner $100 for his interest in a lot from D. Blubaugh, restau-
rant keeper, Guthrie, ~ Deputy Varmun holds a lot and had trouble with a citizen
ahont it Witness: William M. Crooks, Guthrie. In justice to Marshal Needles
state that he denies owning an interest in a foot of ground in the Territory of Okla-
homa, and admits that his deputios procured lands and lots against his express in-
structions, T also state that he bas giveu me more information about frauds and un-
fair dealings upon the part of officers than any other United States official upou. the
ground, - Suspreion is in the air here touching every official, but I state as my rwn
conclusion that there is up to this date no proof of dishonorable conduct upon the
part of Marshal Needles.
Major Pickler will state his own conclusions,
CORNELIUS MACBRIDE,
Inspeotor.

GurHRIE, IND. T., May 8, 1889.
General JoHN W. NOBLE,
Secretary of Interior :
The United States attorney and his assistant, of Kansas, were at Guthrie upon the
2Lt of April and remained for several days. I find no trace of their having entered
or ¢laimed town lots or public lands,

Respectfully
v , ConrNeLIUS MACBRIDE,
Inspector.
~ GUTHRIE, IND. T., May 8, 1880,

General JouNn W. NOBLE,
Secretary of Intevior ; - :

T'ho position of Collector Acers, of Kansas, remains unexplained, and the wrongs
complained of touching the conduct of his alleged deputies are of the gravest char-
acter, ‘

Respectfully,
; CORNELIUS MACBRIDE,
Inspector,

Gurarig, Ino. T., May 8, 1889,
General JOEN W. NOBLE,
Secretary of Interior : :
Sir: There are a good many complaints about jobbing on the part of the city gov-

etnment in the matter of surveying the streets. * But public order and local govern-
went have been fully established, ' : '
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1 wish to be understood as indorsing the city government only so far as the main-
tenance of public order is concerned, as I know nothing about the legality or fairness
of the city survey or the impartiality of its officers touching these matters.

Respectfully,
CURNELIUS MACBRIDE,
Inspector.

GurHRIE, IND. T., May §, 1880,
Hon. JorN W, NOBLE,
: Secretary of Interior :
The matter of Messrs. Dille and Barnes, register and roceiver, has been fully pre-
sented by us, and we have nothing further to add at this time,
Respectfully,
CORNELIUS MACBRIDE,
J. A. PICKLER,
Inspectors,

UNITED STATES LAND OFFICE,
Guthrie, Ind. T., May 8, 1889,

Drar Sir: C. ¥, Sommers and D. A. Harvey, the two United States commissioncrs
at Oklahoma City, Ind. T., are charged by citizens of that place with—

(1) Having been in the town at noon April 22, 1889, and to have claimed as their
own certain town lots, and that they occeupied the same illegally to the detriment of
other citizens.

(2) That they have as such United States commissioners assumed to adjudge he-
tween parties claiming ownership to lots and have illegally ordered parties oft their
lots and havoe illegally ordered deputy United States marshals to remove parties {rom
lots, and that deputy United States marshals acting under their orders bave forcibly
ejected people from their lots. )

In support of these charges I would refer to statement of Herbert 8. Butler ¢f al. in
form ofluﬁ‘iduviﬁ as to action of C. I*, Somimers, Said statement is heroto attuched,
~ marked A.

Also, a8 to charges as to both commissioners, refer to John 1. Voss, W. F. Higge,
J. M. McCormack, and N. 1, Linthican, all of Oklahoma City.

I think that a suggestion from the judge appointing these commissioners, Judge
Foster, as I understand of Kansas, as to their duties would regulate this matter.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

: J. A. PICKLER,
Inspector, Publioc Land Service,
Hon, JouNn W. NOBLE,

Secrctary of the Interior, Washington, D. C.

OKLARHOMA, IND. T., May 6, 1520

Herbert 8. Butler, Joseph B. Harrell, C. W, Arnold, and Frank E. Thacker, each
being first severally sworn accordin% to law, doth depose and say, that we ure all per-
sonally acquainted with George E. Thornton, who claims to be a United States dep-
uty marshal, and that on the 26th day of April, 1889, he came to where Herbert 8.
Butler and Joseph B. Harrell were then located on lots numbered 20 and 21, in hlock
No. 1, according to citizens’ survey of the city of Oklahoma, Ind. T., and that on the
said day the said George L. Thornton, then claiming to be deputy United States mar-
shal, came to where said Butler and Harrell were upon said lots, and who were clain-
ing the possession thereon’; and the said Thornton then and there ordered said Butler
and Harrell to remove their tent from said lots, which was then located thereon, which
they the said Butler and Harrell refused to do. The said Butler and Harrell inquired
of said Thornton by what authority he gave such orders and was attempting to remove
them from said lots; he, Thornton, then stated that he was deputy United States mar-
shal and was acting under orders from C. F. Sommers, United States commissioner;
said Butler and Harrell thegn requested said Thornton to desist from further acts of re-
moval till they could ascertain why C. F. Sommers gave said orders and why he did
80; then the said Butler and Harrell went to see one Judge Harvey, United States
commissioner here, and they did see said Harvey, who said to said Butler and Harrell
that he had no jurisdiction, power, or authority to act in such cases; they then re-
ported the result of their interview with said Harvey to said George E, TLoruton,
who then proceeded to remove said parties and their tent from said lots, which he
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then and there did; then the said Butler, Harrell, W. C. Arnold, and Frank E.
Thacker went to see said C. F. Sommers, and did see him within a few minutes after the
gaill romoval of said tent and parties from said lots, and the said parties inquired of
Mr. C. F. Sommers if ke gave any orders to the said George E, Thornton toremove the
said Harrell and Batler and their tent from said lots, and also inquired of him if he
was a United States commissioner, and he, C. F, Sommers, answered to the said parties,
and in the presence and hearing of each of them, that he was a United States com-
missioner, and then and there exhibited to them his commission as United States com-
migsioner, which the said parties then looked at and read it; it was dated 1887, And
that hie further then and there stated to said parties in their presence and hearing
that he had ordered George E. Thornton, marshal as aforesaid, to remove said Butler
and Harrell and their tent from said lots. The said Butler and Harrell being the
owner of the said tent which was then located upon said lots, and they were claim-
ing said lots by virtue of settlement thereon; which settlement they made a very
short time after 2o’clock of Monday, the 22d day of April, 1889, and that they arrived
at Oklahoma City on the first train on the Santa Fé Railroad from the south, which
was near 2 v'clock of said day, and that they went aboard of said train on said day
at Purcell in the Chicasaw Nation, Indian Territory, and left Purcell on said train a
fow moments after 12 o’clock noon of said day and came directly to Oklahoma on
said train; said lots were not then snrveyed, but the land composing said lots was
afterwards and before the 26th day of April, 18539, surveyed by a committee and sur-
veyors appointed by the inhabitants of Oklahoma City to make a survey of said city,
which they did and numbered said lots 20 and 21, block No, 1, which said lots as now
surveyed is the land upon which said Butler and Harrell settled.

And afiants further state that said interview with C. 1, Sommers he stated to
said Butler, Harrell, Arnold, and Thacker, that he (Sommers) was the owner of the
propetty in question, :

D —

Uxrtep STATES LAND OFFICE,
Guthrie, Ind. T., May 7, 1889,
Dear Sir: Ineclosed please find report as to action of United States Commissioners
C. 1. Sommers and D, H, Harvey, of Oklahoma City, Ind. T.
Very respectfully, . :

J. A. PI1CKLER,
Inspector Public Land Service.
Hon. JouN W, NosLg,

Secretary Interior, Washington, D, C.

GuTtnrig, Inp, T., May 9, 1889.

DyAR Sir: Incloged please find report of the building of land offices at Guthrie
and Kinpfisher stage station, Ind. T\ :
Very respectfully,
J. A, PICKLER,
- Inspector Public Land Servioe.
Hon, Joun W, NoBLE, N
Secretary of the Interior, Washington, D, C.

ARKANSAS CrTY, KaANS., April 25, 1889,

DAk Sir: I will make a formal report of the building of the land offices as soon ,
a8 1 can accurately locate the one at Guthrie.

I made a regular campaign of the building, and staid out with the contractor and
his teamsters or I never could have finished them on time.

Larrived at this place, Arkansas City, on Saturday the 13th, and after awaiting the
receipt of your telegram, contracted for the building of the ‘two offices. Contractor
was to frame and get bnildings ready as nearly as possible to put up, and shiléby car
on Tuesday to Guthrie for both oftices. He had to send teams from here to Guthrie
ahout 100 miles by-wagon road to baul the lumber from Guthrie to Kingfisher,

I went with him on Sunday and saw Captain Hays, commanding company on Cher-
okee Strip and secured passes for his men and teams, :
[ took truin from here for Guthrie on Monday mornin , but the contractor, owin
to delay on the railroad, did not get to Guthrie until %Vednesday noon, 1 boarde

+ With the section hands aud slept with agent, ' ~
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We -immediately commenced the Guthrie building, expecting his teaws to arrive
that evening and be ready to start at once for Kingfisher,

The teams, hlowever, had to wait for swollen streams to run down, and had toswim
their horses over one, and take their wagons over by hand, and did not get to Guth-
rie until Thursday, 3 o'clock.

We got loaded about siindown and the teamsters wanted to camp at the station
over night. I was opposed to this as I knew we would have a late start if we .
mained at station until morning. \

1 firmly but quickly insistedthat we must make a starvt, which we did after diuk
and traveled 5 miles, It rained bard onus. Wo slept on the ground, and the tewn-
sters were more out of humor than ever.

No one of us knew the road, and although I tried for three days to get a guide, |
could not find a man who had traveled from Guthrie to Kingfisher. We starie|
early Friday morning, followed a road a portion of the way and took our dircction
across the praivie and creeks, crossing them as best we conld, and managed to uet
over them without delay, and fortunately, at 9 o’clock Friday night rexched Kin-
fisher, driving about 40 miles,  Saturday and Sunday the buildings were put up, wnd
by Sunday night both offices were ready for occupancy, the register at Kinglisher
. wishing to make some changes on the inside, had the carpenters wait a duy or (wo

before tinishing.

So the buildings were ready Monday morning for occunpancy, and at Guthrie tho
rogister and recelver came into the buildings on-Saturday, 1 staid with them wd
?lept with them and did not bave my clothes off for five nights, It was like soldicr-

ng.
. g:&t 2 o’clock Bunday I started witha team to returu to Guthrie, camped on the way
Sanday night, and arrived in Guthrio at botween 10 and 11 on Monday.

As I cawe in some surveyors were finishing a survey of the town. Tam glad of
your telegram to-day instructing us to ferret it out. It is a fraud and an outrage on
the law-abiding people who obeyed the President’s proclamation. We will try and
get to the bottom of it, and have already been collecting evidence on the matter,
There are some strange facts connected with the town, and some of the land entrics
as we view it. We will report. 1 was besieged on all sides to take men in with n
to allow them to go and help me, but I refused all, went in alone und bhave stecred
cloar of lots and lands, as I believed it my duty,

Yours, truly
J. A, PICKLER,
Hon, JouN W. NOBLE,
Washington, D. C.

Register Dille's defense to charges preferred by Inspectors MacBride and Major Pickler,

UNITED STATES LAND OFrICk,
Guthrie, Ind. T., May 9, 1850,

Sir: I have the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 3d instant
relative to information received at yonr office in reference to certain matters alleged
to bave oceurred at the opening of the laud office at this place April 22, 1859,

In answer thereto permit to me to say: It is true that a man Ly the name of Mark
5. Colin appeared at this office at the opening thereof, at noon, April 22, 1889, and filed
an application for a town site for the town of Guthrie (an application for a howme-
stead ontry for himself, and soldier’s declaratory statements for Berry Twitcliell
James H. Hacklebury, and Benton Turner on the lands described in your letter). Bnt
it is not true that he was a friend of or an acquaintance of mine, or that the wen for
whom he filed soldiors’ declaratory statements were friends or acquaintances of miue,
On the contrary, he and they were total strangers to me, about whom I knew nothing,
I do not know when, how, or by what authority Mr. Colin came into the Territory,
except I knew that he could not have come into the Territory after 12 o’clock noon
and be at this office a few minntes after that hour. I had no knowledge of Mr. Cohn
nor of the existence of his town site or homestead applications or his soldiers’ declar-
atory statements until they were presented at the land oftice to be filed. I did not
know at that time who 'prepared such town-site application, and do not know now,
except from hearsay, that Colonel Clayton prepared it. It is not true that Colonel
Clayton is a personal friend of mine; but, on the contrary, it is true that prior to the
19th or 20th day of April he was a stranger to me, on which day I was introduced to
him. I have seen him but three or four times since and then merely to pass the time
of day. As to what he did or did not do on or before the 22d day of April, 1880, or
.since said date, in locating homesteads, town sites, or town lots 1 do not know ; upon
whioh subjoct I have no information wlhatever. ‘

It is true that Jehu E. Dille is a half brother of mine, that at about 1:2:30 p, m, April
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2, 1889, he filed & homestead application for himself (and soldiers’ declaratory state-
ments for a brether of his and for James B. Kenner on thelands described in your letter,
and that he signed, with others, the town-site application referred to). He wagin this
Perritory prior to noon April 22,1889, but he was here withoutany aid or assistance from
me, and against my advice and wishes. When he presented his homestead-eutry pa-
pers to.me as register of this oftice I turned to Hon. Frank D. Hpbbs, an inspector of
your Department, sent here to aid and instruct us in our work, and to Major Pickler,
a special agent of your Department, and informed them of Wy relationship with the
applicant and of the other facts above stated as to his entering the Territory, and de-
cﬁned to examine or pass upon his papers. Said inspector and special agent exam-
ined all papers gres"ented by him, and the receiver administered the oaths required
by law. As to how Le came to or why he signed the town-site application I do not
know. Such action was taken by him without my knowledge or consent. ‘I'he first
information I had on the subject was the appearance of his name, with others, when
the application wasg preseuted. I do know, however, that he has not taken nor at-
tempted to take a town lot in thia Territory, or in any way attempt to profit by having
gigned said application, and that his desire is and has been to got a tract of land for
farming purposes and not for town sites.

' Some stress seems to be placed upon our allowing entries to be made by persous
who were in the Temritory prior to noon April 22, %have supposed that the register
and recoiver have no authority to look beyond the face of the papers in receiving ap-

lications, and that all questions of that character would Ve raised and determined

y appeals, contests, Department orders, etc., and have acted under that helief, Mr.,
Hobhs, a man of great experience, has been here to aid us andmust have entertained
the same views, a8 no other course wus suggested by him,

It is further stated, in substance, that three deputy marshals, who officiated at the
land-oftice doors, were appointed at my especial request, and that they prevented
others than those above named from making entries. This charge is an unmitigated
falsohood. Butone deputy marshal was appointed on my recommendation. Mr. Need-
les offered me the commissions for three deputies, believing that we should have some
officials present at this office. with whom we were acquainted. I accepted one and
refused to take the other two because I did not know of but one person who desired
to go into the Territory as a looker-on with whom I was personally acquainted, I
gave the one commission to Mr. O. E, Mchler, city editor of the Fort Wuyne Gazette,
who had a sixty days’ leave of absence from the proprietors of his paper, and who
desired to see the opening scene, and who stated to me at the time that he did not
desire to ncquire property. At 12 o’clock, noon, Mr. Mohler was directed to open the
doors of the land office, which are double and swing inwardly. He did as requested
and to our surprise, having expected and prepared for a ﬁreat rush, the men walked
quietly into the room in single file, or very nearly so, without any rush or pushing or
interference from any one. I did not place, or cause to be placed, any marshals out-
side of the door, and did not know the name or face of any of them, but saw no move
by any of them to prevent persons fromn entering the room, and I do not believe any
such woves were made. I do know that Mr. Mohlet, the only deputy marshal in the
room, did not interfere with any one and did not prevent or attempt to prevent any
one from entering the room or approaching the place at which I was stationed to re-
ceive applications, which was in front and in 6 feet of the door. Major Hobhs, an
inspector of your Department, stood by my side, as also did Receiver Barnes and the
two clerks of the oftice, and I am sure they all will verify what I here state. Not a
man was prevented from making an entry b?v the misconduct of any one. Major
Hohbs, at the time, expressed himself as highly pleased with the unexpected good
condnct of all present the first day. )

It is stated that Governmeat oﬂ‘{cials aro illegally holding fown Jots with the con.

nivance of both register and receiver, As this charge is not specific I can only say in
general terms that the accusation is false. I have no interest, dircetly or indirectly,
mono {oot of land inOklahoma, Neither has any other person through my aid or
connivance, What I have here stated as to myself I am sure is also true as to Mr,
Bares, the receiver,
_ Youask for information which I may possess as to whether the law has been broken
irletter or spirit by any officials of the United States, or by those counected with
thew. Thelieve that persons have come into the Territory as officials who have vio-
lated the Jaw, and yet I am unable to be sufficiently specific to be of much service to
you for the following reasous: y -

Our oflice furnitnre was purchased at St. Louis and was to be delivered at Guthrie
by the 17th or 18th of April. Our books, blanks, and supplies were sent to Arkansas
City by mail, - We were detained at Arkansas City with our snpplies until Saturday
afternoon, April 20, by the failure of our furniture to arrive, an by the failure of the
carpenters to have the office building completed. It was nearly dark Saturday even-
ing hefore we arrived at Guthrie, We began work at once to get tho books, plats,
blanks, and office in shape. We have been so crowded that we have been compelled

s' EX- 5“—-2! s
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to work from early morning until late at night, and confined. almost constantly tq
the office. For these reasons we have been unable to mingle with the people ang
learn the facts, When we arrived at Guthrie hundreds of people were here and from
that time on the number increased. Who were or were not ofticials we did not know
and had no means by which we could find out. The people as a rule brought their
tents with them to sleep in. They were pitched without any reference to loty, streots
or alleys. The first fow days Guthrie was a city of several thousand without a sfreet
or alley, and with tenq covering almost every available space of ground. It was jm.
possible for us under the circumstances to learn who {he persons were and whutler
they claimed the groumd upon which their tents were located, oxcept for temporury
occupancy. Soon after the 22d the city authorities made a survey of tho city, located
lots, streets, alleys, ete. Several different persons were frequently on the simoe lot,
many were in the streets and alleys, The city authorities compelled those in streets .
#nd alleys to vacate the premises, and they all had to seek now locations. The cluim.
ants for each lot have lessened in number by mutaal concessions, abandonment, cte,
The pressure of our work, great rush, coustant confinement and sickness of myseif for
two or three days have made it immpossible fer me to keep informed as to the changes
and have not made an attempt to do so. I have been told that a number of depui ",
marshals have taken homesteads, but as I have no list of such officials T can nog
verify such staterment.

I bave tried to answer each point mentioned in your letter, &nd think I have done
s0. Should you find my answers in any particular not sufficiently explicit I shall he
£lad to answer more in detail and furnish youn any information in my possession.

While I was astonished to receive your letter, I am glad of the opportunity to tel]
the facts just as they are, - '

Your obedient servant,
Joun I. DinLy,

Register,
Hon., JoUN W. NOBLE, .
Secretary of the Interior.

OUFICE OF THE MAYOR,
Guthrie, Ind. 1., May 9, 1330,

DEAR Stk : The inclosed is an engrossed copy of resolution, adopted by the mayor
and councilmen of the city of Guthrie, Ind. T.
C. F. Hougn,

City Clerk,
Hon., JouHN W. NOBLE,
Secretary of the Imterior, Washington, D. C,

Whereas in the settlemont of the mauy difficult questious arising from the opening
of Oklahoma toentry, and especially of those connected with the town site of Guthrie,
invaluable assistance has been rondered by Hon. Cornelius MceBrice, special agent
of the Interior Department ; and )

Whereas in the effort tv maintain law and order and to establish a properly
authorized municipality, representing the people, he has aided the people with his
counsel; and :

Whereas he has faithfully represented the actual condition of affairs in his reports
from Oklahoma, and thus presented the law-abiding spirit of the people to tho public
a3 well as the authorities at Washington :

Beit resolved by the mayor and couucil of the city of Guthrie, Indian Territory, That
the hearty thanks of the city council, speaking in behalf of the people, are hLereby
extended to Hon. Cornelius McBride ; and ‘

Resolved, That a copy of these resolutions, attested by the mayor and city clerk, be
¥Iresented to him, while a second copy be forwarded to the Secretary of the Interior,

on. John W, Noble,

UNITED STATES LAND OFFICE,
Gurthrie, Ind, T., May 13, 1889,

DEAR SIR: I desire to say informally to yon that two of Marshal Thomas Needles's
deputies have claimed and held lots in Guthrie from and since the 22d of Aptil,
Also Nelson Clatk and Wallround, district attorney of the United States court st
Muscogee, each held a lot here on the 22d, but have notrbeen here any great length
;)f time since, and I do not know positively whether or not the two latter now elaiw
ots. '
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1f you desire full reports and facts in these cases you can so indicate. I consider it
my duty under your instructions to keep you advised of the situation. i
Your prompt and decided action against all jobs, speculations, and frauds against
the people is appreciated ‘and the great regret is tl;at you do not feel yourself author-
ized under the law to direct matters here. An indication from you on any matter
here is as good as a statute, so far 48 being obeyed is concerned. I trust the criti-
cism of ofticers of the Governtwent is about ended here and many of them regret that
thoy have subjected themselves to the criticisms made.
Vary respectfully,
J. A. PICKLER.
Hon. Joun W. NoBLE,
Seerctary of the Interior, Washington, D, (/,

MR, NIEDRINGHAUS MEASURES GENKERAL NOBLE,
[Special dispatch to the Globe-Democrat.]

. WasHINGTON, D. (., May 10,
* A certain candidate contided to Congressmau Niodri nghaus, who arrived from New
York this morning, his desire to be an Indian agent. He explained confidentially
that he nnderstood that there were opportunities for making money in the Indian
service.  The Congressman listened quietly, and then balancing his eye-glasses he-
tween lis thumb and finger in a judicial and kindly manner, said to the candidate:
“My friend, if you are expecting to make money out of an Indian agency you had
better give np the idea right now. I can tell you, from what I know of tho man, it
.. will not be possible under Secrotary Noble,”

P

GUTHRIE, IND. T, May 14, 1889.

Deax Sir: I would respectfully submit concerning the town site of Edmonds, an
addition to telegram { 13th. That I proceeded to the town of Edmonds, 15 miles
south of this point, on the afternoon of Saturday, the 11th. I called a meeting of the
citizens in the afternoon, representing the different interasts, from which I learned
that hefore noon of Monday, April 22, a party of surveyors were at this point, did
some surveying in forenoon of a town site, and continued Monday afternoon and for
somo two or three days afterward. .

This survey was in charge of a Mr. Shoop, from somewhore in Kansas, and was
made for the Seminole Town Company, being the same company referred to in my
report concerning Marshal Jones as operating at Oklahoma City.

This company had a ‘“ blue print” Monday afternoon, 22d, of the town of Edmonds,
as they laid off and surveyed the same, had certificates similar to the ones nsed at
Oklahoma City and of the one forwarded you, and asked settlers $25 per lot.

Another survey was made on the same land as that surveyed by Shoop on Monday
afternoon, 22d, by parties who cawme in afternoon, and chiefly from Chicago. This
company lnvited settlers,"but put the lots up at auction, one lot being bid up and
purchased by one of the company for $126. )

It was asserted by parties present, however, that these bids were made by parties
belonging to the last-mentioned company and that they invariably socured the best
lots by bidding higher than other settlers, but that they paid no money; in other
words, by this plan this company secured and held the best lots many of them, which
lots they might afterward dfspose of privately at whatsoever price they could obtain.
The surveyors for the Seminole Company, who were managing it, and with their plat
were offering tbo lots of their survey for sale about the time of the promulgation of
the telegram from Commissioner Stockslager to the undersigned, ceased to offerto gell
lots, ard abandoned the site, at loast no one thereafter c'fuimed for that company.
Settlurs, hoaveyer, arriving, and, being displeased with tho action of the partios who
auctioned the lots under the second survey, began settlement on lots as surveyed and
staked by the Seminole Company, where they could secure the lots free, as the sec-
oud survey proposed to charge frow $10 to $25 for lots not disposed of at auction
under their survey.

These surveys were in conflict, the streets an alleys of ous being blocks and lots
of another, and houses-were built accordingly in the street as claimed by oue party
under their survey, and this state of affairs having continued for several days had
engendored much ill:feeling, and the people were all at 4 loss to know what te do.

ingisted on a compromise, and that they must agree and proceed under one sur-.
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vey. The company making the second survey had captared the organization on Mop-
day night, 22d, and elected a mayor and conncil, and had filed a declaration s to
their site in the land office, :

The settlers claimed, mmany of them, that the election of this mayor and council
was quietly done by a few, and that many of them, although present in the towy
knew nothing of the election. ‘ : '

The settlers had a meeting called for 8 o’clock p. m. of the 11th, to elect anoilier
mayor and council, which would of course bring on & contlict between tho two grov.
erninents,

Upon my suggestion, the meeting to elect & new mayor and council was converied
into a meeting to appoint committees to harmonize the differences, and they woull
not permit me to leave until I remained and presided at this meeting and assisted in
arranging a compromise,

A committee was appointed, and, as I since learn, agreed that the mayor and coup-
cil elected should hold forty days from the time of their election, when there shuli e
an election by ballot for the city officers; that a new survey will be made, and 4l
buildings will be adjusted to this survey, and that all parties will accept the com-
promise, and that there will be no furtker trouble in regard to the Edmond town
site. ‘

All of which is respectfully submitted.

J. A, PICKLER, .
Inspector Public Land Servic.,

Hon., JoAN W. NOBLE,
Secretary Interior, Washington, D. C.

GUTHRIE, IND. T., May 15, 18~9, #

DEAR SiR: I would respectfully submit in addition to telegram of W4th instant,
concerning the town site of Harrison, Oklahomu, as follows:

Upon information coming to me that certain parties had laid out a town site and
were offering lots for sale (G miles south of this place, on section 36, township 16, range

3, west of the Indian Meridian, 1 proceeded to that point on the 13th.

- I found a portion of the section staked off into lots, & tent on the site, and a large
s}]gn‘;board bearing the name Harrison fronting the railway, where it passes throngh
the tract. : '

1 talked with J. M. Minick, president of the Harrison Town Company, which com-

pauny has charge of it. - v

He contended tbat school sections were the places to locate towns in order to se.
cure title, said they had consulted the highest authority in the Government and had
been so informed ; said they would sell lots from $5 to $10 each; called it expenses;
that aboat ninety lots had been disposed of.

1 saw parties to whom they had been seeking to sell lots,

The president said they were not yet circulating their printed matter, until they
ot the railway company o put in a switch. Offered to give the undersigned « lot,
f he would put in a small store at once.

I submit a plat that came into my hands in the vicinity of the town, marked A, as

part of this report.

The Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fé Railway passes through the section ahout is
indicated, but the other road has not yet a survey.

Tlearned that there were abgut sixteen parties came in from about Wichita, Kans,,
and have settled on lands around and in the vicinity of this section 36, and that
these parties are the projectors of this town site, They have cut some of the timber
on the tract,* There is a station on the Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fé Railway,
about 2 miles south of this site, called Seward.

1 desire to say in this connection that there are numerous parties settling upon and
iu some instances improving school lands, and many under the impression that they
have the right to do so, -

In other cases the settlers about the school section are cutting and appropriating
the timber found thereon.

All of which i respectfully submitted.

J. A, PICKLER,
Imspector Public Land Service.

Hon, JoAN W. NOBLE,
Secretary of the Imterior, Washington, D. C,
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GUTHRIE, IND, T., May 18, 1889,

DAk SIR: I desire to submit that for about ten days past there has beeu n steadily
inereasing feeling here among the people against the city coancil of Guthrie.

This council was very irregularly chosen to begin with, and as the people uunder-
gtood for the purpose merely of putting the machmerty of the city in motion, an('l of
recomtiending and devising a more permanet form of government for the city. The
mayor was selected by n committee of seven chosen by u mass meeting, and a com-
wittee of one from each State and Territory firat chosen to recommend what action
the people should take to govern themselves by common consent afterward, because
the council, something in excess of thirty, I think, at the time chosen, but now num-
bering about fifteen. . .

(irave responsibilities were forced upon them, and generally, I think, they have as-
sumed and settled them in o creditable manner. They have preserved order, surveyed
the town, cleared the streets practically, and in these matters they are commended
by all. They have, however, assumed other powers and undertaken to act in varfous
matters that is very generally and very emphatically condemned. .

They appointed an attorney at $1,800 per year, and an adviser of the council in
addition, at a salary in excess of this, a board of five arbitrators on settling the right
of possession to lots, some being members of the council, at §10 per day each, com-
pelling every contestant to deposit each $10 before his case could be heard, and re-
tarning ouly the $10 to the party snceceeding, and keeping the remainder, sometimes
being live or six contestants to the same jot.

Have granted or pretended to grant a franchise for ten years to a company to
sinply the ity with water, built a bridge across the stream, grading streets, and in
liky manner taking many such steps that, the citizens loudly protest they were not
chosen to do, and, further, collecting large taxes, occupation tax for a business of $5
per month, u survey tax, a recorder’s tax on lots, etc. )

Enacting harsh ordinances with heavy and severe penalties for violation of these
ordinances, and recklessly using mouney in paying oficials and surveying the town,
in violation.of the resolutions ot the people, meeting in order to save their own lots.

Farther, it is claimed against this counncil that ‘they are of those who came in on
Sunday hefore the 22d and seized all of the best lots, and that the city government
has in all matters protected the interents of these men. The mayor, Mr. Dyer, of
Kaunsas City, came on Sunday,

The wore emphatic this charge has been made from the fact that the city council
instructs their hoards of arbitration that in considering who is entitled to a lot the
board can not take into consideration the time of settling as before or after 12 o’clock,
but that priority of settlement on Monday the 22d, regardless of the hour, entitled
the party to the lot. This the people consider in direct conflict with the President’s

roclamaltion.

y In the last few days the council, in addition to the first board of arbitration of five,
selected two other boards of five each, with a compensation of $5 per day each, as
claimed by some, and $10 as claimed by others, .

The council has likewise transacted much of its business with closed doors, The
lawyers during the week haveformed a bar association, and are the first to take action
looking to an election of city officers and to the drafting of a charter to govern them.,

A petition was cireulated yesterday asking the council to call an election, to divide
the city into waryls, and to have the registry of the voters, and asking that the elec-
tion he hield Monday the 27th of May. "Everybody practically signs the petition.

Independent of this petition the citizens held a large mass-meeting last evening on
the Government acre. They were very much in esrnest and very determnined. Before
Tarrived at their place of meeting, and after speeches by different parties, they had
passed o resolution ousting the mayor and city council, appointed a committee to so
notily them, and also had passed a resolution appointing a committee of seven to call
a city clection, ignoring the present mayor and council. At this time there had
grown to be considerable excitement. The friends of the old council were on the
olutskirts, deriding this action, which only tended to incense the great majority of
the crowd, '

Inow desire, at the risk of seeming egotistie, to inform you, Mr. Secretary, of my
l::ct.lou i“l the matter, as I was doubtful then, and am still so, as to whether T should

ave 8o done.

Iluve heretofore, although frequently called on at these mass-meetings, refrained
from appearing or sayidg anything, as I have at all times refrained from enterin
Into the questions of who should be selected for officers or what these officers shoulﬁ
do, other than to advise a peaceable and quiet administration and that city officers,
United States marshals, and military should act harmoniously in preserving order.
And provious to this mass-meeting (except at the bar meeting one evening, when
tome meinbers advised the calling of an election, ignoring the present government, [
said o few words in favor of the petition to the council asking them to call tfm
election) I have never said anything, :
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At the jnncture above described, in this large meeting of last evening, however,
wlhen o few men were pushing an adjournment, leaving the resolution in effect 1,
oust the present council, there were loud calls for me, from, I think, both sides or
sentiments, I finally took the stand. I told them that as humble representative of
the Interior Department’] desired to say that the desire of the Department and the
Governmnient was that they should have a good and economic as well as honest ad.
ministration of their city affairs, and that the Government was determined to stand
by the men wlo obeyed the President’s proclamation, so far as it was in its power to
do.

I then told them that in my judgment it was a mistake to not petition the mayor
and council to call the election, that it would most likely result in two conflicting
city governments and great disorderand confusion as well as great danger to the pul-
lic good ; that they must admit that the council had done much to be commended,
and that T was c¢onfident an election would not be refused them, Agreed with them
that they were entitled to a speedy election by ballot; that they were entitled to a
sworn statement froin the present council as to all moneys collected and paid ont;
that their incoming administration should define the fees of all officers and boards;
should be economie, and should be very careful in regard to granting to individuals
valuable franchises of the city without due consideration.

All parties of the large crowd gave me their undivided attention, and from all
sides_came the cries of ‘‘ That is right.” A Mr. Dale,an attorney of Wichita, (ol-
lowed advising the same, and at the close of his remarks a motion was made to recon-
sider the vote declaring the offices vacant, but the chairman of the meeting and
about half a dozen others who were in favor of the action already taken by tho
meeting, declared the motion out of order, aud amid great counfusion, and no little
excitement, the meeting was about to be adjourned, against the almost nnanimons
desire of those present to carry out my suggestion,

They again called for me, and quickly mounting the stand, I very earnestly ap-
pealed to them to act coolly, and asked them if the resolution they had passed pro-
vailed what would become of the city without officers and without a government
until they elected others. To this rather alarming condition, the few ultra ones
seemed to take heed, and the motion again made to reconsider carried, and a com-
mittee appointed to present petitions to the mayor to call an election, and then ad-
journed in good humor, and all, I think, deeming the action taken for the best.

Now as to whether I should have as an officer of the Government taken part in
this weeting or undertaken to advise or whether the question should have been left
with them without any interference or suggestion on my part is a point upon which
I am not thoroughly satisfied. It seemed the thing to do, and wmany of the most cou-
servative men came to me and thanked me for the action taken, and said that it had
undoubtedly saved serious trouble.

I do not think such an emergency vill arise again. The council will grant the
election; in fact just before the close of the meeting sent word that the election would
be called for June 10. This, however, is too late a date to suit the people, and I
think when we confer with the council on this point, they will fix an earlier date.
The meeting was unanimous, however, that if the council refused to call the elcction,
that then the citizens would call it,

It is a very interesting study to watch this, a pure democracy, evolve a govern-
went and set their machinery in motion, but it will be done peaceably and grderly
aund without trouble if liquor does not enter, and the United States marshals and
deputies are to be commended for their vigilance in this direction.

The necessity and wisdom of a constitution or charter, restricting the powers of
public bodies, had been impressed upon my mind here as never before.

New people are still arriving, and the town, as does also Oklahoma City, continues
to grow as rapidly as at the beginning, It is simply wonderful.

The city governments of all ﬁle other towns in the territory of Oklahoma are ruu-
ning smoothly, and the officers of the land office are handling the business in a very
commendable manner,

My opinion is that I would better at least remain in this section until after the
election of city officers here in Guthrie,

All of which is respectfully submitted with the further suggeation that there ix an
urgent necessity for some directions to the local land offiters as to how contasts
against town lot occupants may be initiated and the rights of the parties proserved.:

1 am, very respectfully, :
: J. A. PICKLER,
o Inspector of the Publio Land Scrvice.
Hon. JoHN W. NOBLE,
Secretary of the Interior, Washington, D, C.
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GurHRIE, IND, T., May 19, 1889,

Drar Sir: I would respectfully submit: That John M. Gallaway, a United States
commissioner who camn to Guthrie, Ind. T\, Saturday, April 20, is settled upon a lot
upon which he placed his tent upon his arrival here, and that his son, aged seventeen
years, also claims one, his father insisting on the son’s claim also ; that they have both
heen involved in a contest concerning ihe lots, and that the board of arbitration
of the city council has awarded a lot to the commissioner, John M. Gallaway, and
also one to the son, against other contestants. Mr, Gallaway is lately from Kansas.

All of which is submitted.

I amn, very respectfully,
J. A. PICKLER,
Inspector Public Land Service.
Hon. JouN W, NOBLE,
Secretary of the Interior, Washington, D. .

GUTHRIE, IND. T., May 28, 1889,

Drar Sik: T desire to state that matters here are quiet and peaceable. There is
gome feeling by individuals concerning their ejectment from lots, and occasionally
there ix a controversy concerning the building upon a disputed lot, or when oneparty
in the absence of another claimant commences a building, but in these the citizens
do not take any special interest, . .

There have been two iustances in which a squad of soldiers have come up town,
The one of which 1 telegraphed you, at which the crowd had dispersed before they
arrived, and in the other there was a fist fight occurring when they came to where
therc had been some interference with the workmen pulling a foundation off that
bad been quictly placed on early Sunday morning,

In my opinion there has not yet been any necessity for calling a soldier from the
camp,

1 (]lo not doubt, Mr., Secretary, that were you here as a United States marshal that
you could yourself preserve order without assistance,

The city authorities have not for several days undertaken to evict anyone, nor do
1 think they will until after election, and this has been the immediate cause (evic-
tionis) of the disturt:ances above referred to. I cannot refrain repeating, as heretofore
often usserted, that the people are a remarkably orderly and quiet people.

After the election, June 4, the rules and regulations, which the new council may
establish concerning claimants to lots, will, I'think, be respected by all parties, and
the Government will be respected and moro satisfactory.

I inclose slip from Daily (Guthrie) Capital, commenting upon my report, with
items concerning council, ' -

I submit, Mr, Secretary, that after the election here June 4, that I do not believe
there is much necessity of my remaining here longer, unless a new emergency arises.

And I desire to further suggest if you have need of any one about the Sioux reser-
vation, or in the Dakota land matters or land office, I would be pleased to get np to
;vhem Ilconld see my family, or if any other locality you desire me to go, I might go
hy my home,

Should he pleased to hear from you concerning the matter,

Yours truly,
J. A, PICKLER,
- Tnspector Public Land Service.
, Hon, Joun W. NomLe,
Seeretary of the Interior, Washington, D. C.

)

MAJOR PICKLER.
[Daily Capital May 28.]

Ou the first page of to-day’s paper will be found a report sent by Inspector Pickler
to Secretary Noble, under date of May 18,  Of course there are many statements which
will yrate harshly on the sensitive feelings of some of our councilmen. But Major
Pickler is regarded by all who bave made his acquaintance as an honorable gentle-
wan, who can have no interest in making u misstatement in regard to Guthrie’s af-
fairs. Ile undonbtedly weighed carefully every statement he made to his superior
oftlcer, and having mingled freely with the residents of the city undoubtedly knew
the feeling existing here regarding the management of city affairs, Major Pickler
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says in the first part of his report ¢ the council was readily chosen, to begin with wnd
as the people understood, for the purpose merely of putting the machinery of the city
«in-motion.” This statemeng we all know to be true. Look at some of the men who
claim to “‘represent States” in the council thus “readily chosen,” and thé exclam-
tion will be made, ¢“ God help tho State you claim to represent if you area fair sam-

ple.”  Why, the fact is, if the States some of these men cluim to hail from cver

ear about attempts yon have made at legislation in Guthrie they will saw out {le
county you hail from, slide it out into the ocean, and mark the place with an indeli-
ble blot of infamy. '

There are many good and honorable men in the city council—men who have worked
for the best interests of the people, men who have done their whole duty without fear
or expectation of reward except the indorsetnont of their official acts. To those fow
men the citizens have the kindest feelings. But for these men, who in the honr of u
‘little Dbrief authority, held by tho most slender thread, that have spent their tinn
scheming to pass ordinances in conflict with the President’s proclamation, in con.
flict with all ideas of right and justice, they will certainly be dispensed with on the
4th of June.  You men who have done yonr whole duty for Guthrie have no reason
to fear any of the statements made in Major Pickler's letter, nor are you expected (o
condone tho sins of men you had no hand in ehoosing, nor apologize for the shawetul
¢ity legislation in which you did not range yourselves alongside with those who liave
disgraced {he name of Gutbrie,

GUTHRIE, IND. T., June 8, 1889,

Hon. JOHN W. NORLE,
Secretary of the Interior, Washington, D. C. :

I would regpectfully submit that, learning there was some friction in the city gov-
ernment at Okluhoma City and desiring to confer with the people concerning the
adoption of a charter, I visited that place on the 5th instant.

I found that a petition had been signed quite extensively asking the mayor and «
portion of the city council to resign for reasons therein set forth, which I do not
think it necessary to state, and that there was quite a strong feeling existing he-
tween those signing and others opposing the petition,

The suggestion of the adoption by the people of a charter was generally favorably
received, but some difference of opinion as to time it should be submitted to u vote,

I learned that a mass meeting was advertised for the evening on one of the prin-
cipal strects, which I attended.” There was, I should judge, about 1,000 voters, very
quiet and orderly.

The committeo appointed to ask the resignation of the officers reported that they
refused to resign.. A motion was then made to appoint a committee to call an clec-
tion to select delegates to frame a charter independent of the mayor and council. It
seemed about to carry without discussion when I asked to be heard, when Isuggested
that the motion be amended so as to appoint a committee to ask the city council to
call an election for delegatesinstead o? calling it independent of that body. There
were cries from a few that ‘‘ we have no government;” but this was not countenanced
by the erowd, especially after the mention of a number of facts showing they had a
pretty strong government.

The motion amended prevailed, and the committee was appointed to ask the coun.
cil to call the election. -

I append hereto an account of the meeting from the Oklahoma City Daily Journal
of the 6th as part hereof.

““ AN IMPORTANT MOVE—MAJOR PICKLER ADVISES A CHARTER CONVENTION—THE
BOARD OF TRADE APPOINTS AN IMPORTANT COMMITTEE~THE CLAIMANTS TO THE
COUCH QUARTER TO BE TREATED WITIS,

“‘There have been several points of very critical interest in the history of Okla-
homa City, and last night was one of them, 'I'wo meetings were held which in their
resalts may be as important to the future interests of Oklahoma City as any events
that have as yet transpired in our history. The first was the decision to petitionthe
mayor and council to call an election of delegates to a charter convention for the pur-
pose of formualating an organic instrument to define, designate, and limit the legisla-
tive powers of the council. At the citizens’ meeting, held on Grand avenue, the
committee appoiuted to request the resignation of certain members of the city gov-
ernment reported that these gentlemen demand the charges preferred against them
and decline to resign, ‘Thereupon Judge Adams moved that the meeting appoint a
committee to call u charter convention, Major Pickler, special inspector of the Gen-
eral Land Department, made a vigorous and thoroughly sensible and convincing
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speech, showing the utter folly of having two distinet city governments, advising
peace aud harmony, He suggested that the motion be so amended as to provide in-
stead for a committee to ask the mayor and council to call au election for a delegate
convention to prepare a charter defining the powers of the city government. After
gome further discussion this amendment was made and carried, and the committee
appointed, consisting of Messrs. Woods, Adams, Finley, Woodson, and Bayless.

*This is a matter of vital importance—of altogether too much importance, indeed,
to be decided without careful deliberation. There are weighty considerations both
ways, and we advise a thorough investigation of the matter in all its bearings with
a view to the best interests of the city.. We know the matter is now under earnest
consideration by a large number of business men, and we earnestly desire to do noth-
ing to embarrass in any way the wisest action.

“The other meeting to which reference was made in the beginning of this artfcle
way the meeting of the bourd of trade. There was a large attendance, but the meet-
ing for the election of the board of directors was postponed until Monday night, The
West Oklahoma question was taken up, and a motion was made to appoint a commit-
teo to negotiate with the various claimants of the tract through their attorneya for their
relinquishments,  Major Pickler being present, made some very forcible remarks
beartily approving the idea of getting this tract peaceably, and strongly deprecating
any idea of forcible entry. The motion was carried unanimously, and ‘Messrs. J. L.
Brown, C. P. Walker, C, W. Price, G. W. Adams, and B. N. Woodson were appointed.
We need not, say that we heartily approve of this plan, as it is in line with the
proposition heretofore made in this paper. For some reason, whether just or not we
do not pretend to say, some of the contestants to this property refused to treat with
the conunittee previonsly appointed, but it is believed they will all listen to over.
tures now,  'We emphatically favor exhausting every means to open this town site
peaceably. The method of acquiring lots in case the tract was secured was not ex-
tensively discussed, but we think it is the universal feeling that thosé who failed to
get lots in Oklaboma City should have the first chance in West Oklahoma.

“Iu connection with these matters we may say that we had a pleasant interview
with Major Pickler thismorning, in which he spoke in glowing terms of the possibili-
ties in store for Oklahoma City in case she continues to steer clear of internal dis-
eord, ‘

‘“ Colonel Pickler’s remarks to the mass meeting last night about the necessity of
avoiding internal dissensions, and of pulling together for the good of the town, were
eminently sensible and to the point, and they fell upon attentive ears. The people of
Oklahoma City realize the golden opportunity that is within their grasp, and the
Journal has implieit faith tﬁat their wisdom and prudence and moderation will be
cqual to the solution of every difficulty that lies in their way.” '

The Daily Gazette likewise indorsed the action in effect the same.

~ Ou the next day, the 6th, I had a conference with the different committees of busi-
n_(;sa mm{) representing the different opinions, and the military, the mayor and coun-
¢l nmembers, .

Had the mayor meet at my room the committee representing those who had de-
manded his resignation, and a general discussion of the situation was had, the charges
and complaints considered, for a period of two hours, when a much better feeling
prevailed, and promises of efforts to harmonize,

Further conference was had on the 7th, when I returned to Guthrie, and as both
parties urged me to return again and assist in further negotiations for the adjustment
of their differences I promised to so do within a few days.

A better feeling '{)revailed, and I think the differences will be harmonized, although
there is determined sentiment and antagonistic yet prevailing.

1 am,; very respectfully, .
J. A. PICKLER,
Inspector Public Land Service.

S——

GUTHRIE, IND. T., June 10, 1889,

. DraR 8IR : I would respectfully submit that, being about to leave the Oklahoma
field of work, I desire to say in behalf of the land office at Guthrie that its manage-
ment and discharge of business is being satisfactorily performed.

The affairs of the office proceed in a quiet, orderly, and commendable manner.
There is no uomrlaint concerning the same, to my knowledge, and I believe its offi-
cors are faithfully performing their duties. ;

I have not had the opportunity to recently visit the land office at Kingfisher, but
understand its business is proceeding satisfactorily. .

I am, respectfully,
J. A, PICKLER, .
Inspector of the Public Land Service,
. Hon, Joun W. NoBLE ’

Secretary of the Iut’erior, Washingion, D, O,
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FAULKTON, 8. DAK,, June 21, 1889,

DEAR GENERAL: The copy of the letter of 1). B. Dyer, esq., mayor of Guthrie, under
date of May 28, has just reached me forwarded from Guthrie. I am surprised at it«
contents as they are so utterly false.

1 had not intended to trouble you with the detail of the city government of Guthrie,
further than that submitted under date of May 17, and forwarded that only by way
of explanation of the causes of the decp-seated dissatisfaction at that time prevailing
against the city government of Guthrie.

I did not suppose then, nor do I now think, that you care to consider the detail or
action of the officers of that place, further than the bearing they may have had upon
the public peace,

I must, however, ask to trespass upon your {ime to deny most emphatically the
assertions of Mr. Dyer and to snggest a few further facts concerning that now de-
funct city government, ‘ ‘

And first, although Dyer may have signed this letter, or written it, I do not believe
he is the real author of it, but I am of the opinion that its real origin is from some
members of that old city council, and that it was prepared in the heat of feeling which
the publication of my report aronsed among that body, and Dyer was required to
sign it, .
our publication of my report at that time was the very best thing that could have
happened to the ;)eoplo of Guthrie. Ituaroused the indignation of tﬁe “jobbers” and
¢ corruptionists ” of that body, but it was heartily indorsed by the people, and the
facts being thus summarized and published called attention to these abuses and so-
lidified all partios against the re-election of the members of that couneil.

Now, before referring to Dyer’s letter, I desire to call attention to a few facts con-
cerning my position taken and held at all times as connected with Mr. Dyer and the
old council,

I at all times contended when asked in regard to the matter, and I did not intro-
duce this subject myself, that the President’s proclamnation meant what it said, and
that the parties who violated the same, entering the Territory before noon of the 22
of April, would not be regarded as occupying the same position as the men who obeved
the law honestly. I did not raise theso questions, but quietly attended to my own
business ; but, being frequently interrogated as to this question, the foregoing was
my position,

Now, several of this old council, and Mr. Dyer, the mayor, were law-breakers; were
in the Territory before noon of 22d, Mr. Dyer coming on Sunday, the day before, Now,
at all times the men who came bhefore noon, 22d, stood together, and of course thesce
did not appreciate the doctrine of obeying the law and the President’s proclamation,

Moreover, Mr. Dyer was made mayor first by a committee of seven, and Mr. Mar-
shal Jones, of whom we have heretofore reported, gave the casting vote that elected
Dyer, and then this old council passed an ordinance governing their board of arbitra-
tion first appointed, which Mayor Dyer approved, deelaring it irrelevant as to the
time of entering the Territory, in controversy for lots before the hoard, in terms de-
claring that the parties first upon the lot after 12 o’clock to be entitled to it without
regard to the time of entering the Territory. Now, it is equally and more emphatic-
ally true that all persous who came in accordance to law denounced the rule goveru-
ing this board of arbitration, and were in favor of maintaining the law of Congress
rather than this rule. Now, when questioned concerning the matter, I was, in my
opinion, in accord with the people, and the law of Congress and the President’s proc-
lamation, and on that point not in accord with this board of arbitration.

Mr. Dyer begins his letter by stating that P. has ¢ continuously since coming here
been, and still is guilty of practices that are endangering the peace and good order
of our whole community.”

This is a willful and deliberate falsehood. I came to Guthrie April 15, to com-
mence the building of the land office; was there the 22d, made it iny headquarters un-
til my leaving. Now,is it not a little singular that not until May 28, after the publi-
cation and the reading by this mayor and city council of Guthrie my report on
the complaints of the people concerning them, that my seditious doctrines were
thought of sufficient moment to report to you.

. And on the contrary of this assertion I was continuously consulted, in connection
with Mr, MuacBride, by the marshals and &eputies as well as the military, as to the
best means of preserving peace, and there never was from the first to Jast, and until
my leaving, any deviation from an earne¢st, honest support of the city government in

reserving order, police regulatious, and in all things necessary to maintain peace,

‘aptain McArthur, of the regnlar Army, now at Leavenworth ; Marshal Needles, and
his deputies, and every man of Guthrie, except perhaps some of this old city council,
and to my face they will say the same, will fully sastain the above assertion,

Pickler is “guilty of practices that are endangering the peace and good order of
our entire commuuity.” 5

I eay, without any fear of successful contradiction, which I can sustain by either
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community, that both at Guthrie and Oklahoma City, that it was only through my ef-
forts, exerted at the right time and keeping quiet at other times, that rival govern-
ments, confusion, and the most serious trouble was averted, and Iouly wish, general,
that you could yourself be among these people for a short time, and hear their verdict.
1really thought they gave mo much more credit than I deserved.

Again the letter proceeds: He ‘[ Pickler] has on several occasions addressed large
and excited gatherings of people, whom he has assured in most positive terms that
their grievances were real and not immaginary,” ate.

Now,such declarations as this led me to believe that this was prepared by sowme one
else than Dyer, and he was assured that I had addressed meetings, otherwise he
would not have msde such absolutely false statewents, which I can so easily contra-
dict. I never addressed a public meeting at or about Guthrie, except the one which
1 reported to you, the night when 1,500 men at least, as good and law-abiding men,
too, g weore in the Territories (with the exception of a few ¢ hot-headed and unrea-
sonablo fellows”) declared the city officers deposed, appointed a committes to wait
upon them when they were in session only a block away, and so inform them, and
amid o wild and noisy enthusiasm, and a determination that was alarming, appoint a
committee to call an election for new city officers, when upon the loud call of a few
of the more conservative I tried to show them the folly of such a course, and althongh
they had refused to hear others and cried them down, because 1 came an humble rep-
resentative, as I told them, of the great Interior Department of this great Govern-
ment ; because 1 came ag your representative whom they all believe honestly has
their hest interests at heart; becanse they know I had not been seeking as othet offi-
cers had to hold lots; Lecause I was claiming nothing in the Territory for myself or
friends; because they knew I could have no other object in view than to advise as to
what 1 honestly and candidly thought was best; they heard me, and they heeded me,

recousidered the whole action, and asked this council to call the election. I tell you,
Geueral, I have observed and studied men under different phases of experience, and
I kuow you have to a much greater extent and longer experience done the same.

You have led mep in battle; yon have addressed bodies of men, and juries, where
the feeling was against your sentiments and against what you wero at the time ad-
voeating, and yon know there comes in such oxperiences moments when you yourself
foel the very determination of the erowd or jury—it may be against you, it may be
for you—but it is a determination which, led, changed, or guided, must be carefully,
coolly, and deliberately done.

Such was the erowd above referred to. They were opposed to the measures I sug-
gested ; they were very much iu eainest; they believed and boldly asserted that this
old council had disobeyed the instruction of the people in the survey of the town;
changed it to accommodate the property of themselves and friends, that whereas the
peoplo hiad ordered, on the evening of April 22, before any one knew whether he was
on a strect, alley, or lot, the people had ordered the blocks surveyed 300 feet square,
strects 50 feet, alleys 205 that in total disregard of this instructica they had made
blocks of irregular size, streets of irregular widths, alleys with elbows crooked and
irregular, lots of various sizes, and all for the accommodation of favored individuals,
and that they appealed to the plat filed to corroborate these charges; that large
amounts of money weére being collected and recklessly expended ; that the boards of
arbitration were corrupt, and that decisions weroe according to the payment made
members of the board, and that this council was now seeking to delay an election so
that new officers could not succeed themn before the 1st or about the 1st of July.

They thus felt that this council should be deposed, and at once, and such a feelingf
1 had to encounter when I undertook to address that meeting. It was a crisis, as
helicved ; the current was changed, and they decided to tolerate the old government
until » new one was elected. ;

It seemed the thing to do; they did it. I had them in a good bhumor before ad-
journing, and I'was universally commended by all parties, even including members
of the city council, for averting trouble. And I tell you, General, that old council,
whatever they might say, were glad of my action ; it meant more to them than any
ono elso in the town, '

In a few days after this, when a large crowd, not at all the same erowd which
had held the meeting, but composed of those who felt an interest in the mattor,
were at the jail to release a man who had been put in by the city authorities,
on a lot eviction, following Marshal Needles I again with him advised them to dis-
perse, and that the city government must be upheld, the crowd did disperse. Idid net
speak more than two minutes, and nothing was said whatever in regard to the city
government except that it should and must be upheld. That I counseled lot and
claim jumping is absolutely untrue. Ihad nomotive imaginable to havesodone. My
object at all times was to preserve peace, and why or what object I could have had
in advising lot-jumping, which would be more likely than anything else to arouse
disturbance, does not occur to me. I positively never advised in a single instance
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any such course, and no man in the Territory can be found that will meet me and
say 80. '

Again, his Jetter states, ‘‘ He has several times presented himself, uninvited, beforo
the city council and boards of arbitration, and oftered unsolicited advice as to what,
action should be taken in contest cases.”

This assertion is a lie from beginning to end, and without a shadow of foundation, |
nevor was present at the meoting of the council, except one single evening after the
meeting of the mass meeting above referred to, and went for the purpose of asking
the council to concede to the request for an election. I only spoke a few minutes, and
iu the most conciliatory way, and about no contest, nor about no other subject except
asking the council to meet the people in spirit of eompromise in calling the election,
which they did, giving the committee from the people such assurance, and the com-
mittee assuring the council, in line of my remarks, that they would advise the peoplas
to accept the compromise, which they did,.and which resulted in the satisfactory
calliug of the election, and good feeling prevailed at the couneil, and different mem-
bers thanked e for being present and assisting in the adjustment of the difficulties,
This was the sole and only time I was ever before this council, and M-, Dyer must,
have known it.

I never was i any time before any board of arbitration of Guthrie to say a word
upon any subject, nor did I ever say a word to any such board, and the assertion

. that I way is basely untrue,

That I made public any information from your Department which produced ex-
cited rumors is the farthest from the truth, if the distance can be measured, of any
allegation of the letter.

I never made any public, except as to your letter in June, concerning which I tele-
graphed you, wbic{; was after this letter was written. The cloven foot is tinally dis-
played by his reference to my letter of May 17, the one yon published, characterizing
it false and malicious, and this letter ¢ mine is the explanation of the writing of the
Dyer letter. He never discovered that I was stirring up strife, nor did I ever hear it
intiated from any one that I was, until I received the copy of this letter,

He says not exceeding $175 has been paid attorneys. Ionlystated in iny letter the
salaries fixed ; that the amount I so stated as fixed by the council is not the truo
amouut he does not deny, but seeks to dodge the matter by stating that there has not
been paid to exceed $175 as yet. IHe says there has been no extravagance. I think
there was nowhere any economy.

The statement after made by Mr. Dyer as to financial condition shows $1,700 for
improvements and $3,500 for salaties. . '

This letter states that he has four boards of arbitration—two at $10 per day each, per
meimber, and two at $5 per day each, per member. Now, there were five each on these
$10 per day boards, which was 100 per day, and I think five each of the $5 per day
boards, which was $50 per day or $150 per day for arbitration boards, and & number
of these members of these boards were members of the city council which created
these boards and fixed their salaries. :

The new council, lately elected, have only one board of three members, and will pay
the members, as I understand, $5 per day each.

Dyer's letter states that they now receive §1 per day each (those boards). The in-
dignation became so intense and the election so near that they did pass some such reso-
Intion, but & member of the hoard told me they did not sit since the reduction, and
were waiting until after election, i

Dyer says 1 advised persons not to go before the board of arbitration. I wneither
advised the one way or the other. These boards, in order to keep up business as I be-
lieve, maintained that their certificate would entitle the holder to a pateat to the lot,
or that the Government would recognize this certiticate. When consulted in regard
to the matter Ly persons interested in purchasing the same, I gave it as my opinion
that this certificate was recognized by the city authorities as entitling the holder to
possession, but that it was not recognized by the Government as any title, And as
for the possession I advised them that it would be a help to have this certificate, us
the city police force put the possessors in possession of such property.

He says the petition called only for an election of counsel, but he preferred to have
all elected, I spoke to him myself in rogard to the mmatter, but he did not say he
preferred an election for mayor. The reason was that the council passed the oxdi-
nance to elect mayor as well as council, and Mr. Dyer could not help himself,

He concludes his latter upon the platform he was re-elected ; that is, that he does
not approve all the sctions of his council.

Now, general, you may know Mr. Dyer better than I do, but I consider him a weak
man. He says he did not approve thoe acts of the council, but ho never vetoed any
of them, as far as the people could learn. He was, as you may know, the Indiun
agent at Fort Reno in 1885 who resigned so suddenly when General S8heridan visited
that post. ;

A c‘;gizen of Quthrie, who was a soldier at the post at the time, informed me that
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the claim then was that- the rations were being issued to 4,000 more Indians than
could be found. Full accounts, I understand, were pablished in the Globe-Democrat
and Kansas City Times. .

Ktrange to say, also it was positively asserted at Guthrie that the man Hill, who was
chairman of the arbitration board at Guthrie, and who, when a man did not have
the money, made him put up his watch as security for fees on arbitration, was Dyer'’s
heef contractor when he was agent, Hill claims to have been in the Indian country,
and has a squaw for a wife now living at Caldwell, Kans,, as is asserted and believed
at Guthrie, and which I believe to be true from what I could learn.

Dyer was very hotly opposed by a large number of the voters of Guthrie, but indi-
vidually I had nothing whatever to do with it, I was convinced that whoever was
eleeted mayor, with a new council, would be practically recognized and give a sta-
ble government. '

There was no organized effort against him until two days before the election, then
ouly partial, while his forces with his officials were well organized. Thero was very
strong objection to him because he came in before the 22d. He was supported by
many good men, who had Leen awarded lots by the Dyer administration, #1d who
were alarmed by the ery of Dyer’s friends that to elect & now mayor would unsettle
business, and possibly change the survey of the town, and so his city attorney, whe
was appointed such by Dyer because he had had the support of the gamblers at the
fivst selection of mayor for that otfice himself, was at the last election his firin sup-
‘vorter, and sctive, and by some way Dyer carried all that vote, and he spared no
efforl. to carry the election. His friend constantly denounced the acts of the councit,
but claimed he was not responsible for same. Yet, notwithstanding this re-election,
I congider any man a weak man who keeps such a man as Hoggatt his city attorney,
a man who was drunk whenever occasion offered, and who was a notorious visitor of
dance-houses, and guilty of disgraceful conduct, ‘

8o his police force were in many instances guilty of the most disreputable and dis-
honest practices, which was generally and notoriously known. He received votes
of all who came before 12, the 22d. Morcover, I consider a man weak who openly
entered the Territory of Oklahoma contrary to law.

Yet 1 had no controversy with any of these parties; my relatious were pleasant
with ull.  None of them ever intimated to me at any time that I was not satisfactory
in nll my acts. I never had an unpleasant word with Mr, Dyer. But I think that
letter was prepared when the council was nettled and chagrined by the publication
of my letter, Nor do I believe that Dyer or any of them would now write such a
letter. The new election was had, the old council was left out, a new administra-
tion is in, and when Mr. Dyer nominated one of his old police for new chief of police
the new conneil refused to confirm his appointment, when he nominated an old sol-
dier, who on Decoration I selected to command the veterans, and who was promptly
contirmed.

S0 on Decoration day I was chosen president of the day, and invited all the mayors
to the stand, and one member of the old council who had been in Confederate army
wag called out, as I had intimated to him before would probably be the case, and made
a very patriotic speech for the flag. Thanks were returned me for my contribution
to the success of the occasion, and a good feeling prevailed generally,

I congratulated Mr. Dyer on his re-election, talked with him concerning his new
{erm, and he denounced the action of some of his former officers. I told him if he
would shake off the old crow«t he would have the indorsement of the people, which
he eeemed to consider necessary to do.

Now, general, I tell you there is no truth in the assertions of that letter, and that
my etforts were warinly appreciated by the people, especialy at Guthrie, Oklahomu
City, and Edmund, where they had difficulties with their town matters; that the
mayors of each of the Guthries, except Dyer’s Guthrie, expressed regrets at my leav-
ing, us did the mayors of the other towns with whom I advised, and I know the people
are with me, and this T can establish I know, becanse I know they feel warmly toward
me and appreciate my work, which was the general expression of all, and which you
can find to be the case at any time you may inquire. And the fecling was expressed
Ly an old gentleman who was special agent under the last administration, He said,
“T'am sorry you are leaving. You have been of much service to us here. You have
the confidence of the people and you have gained it by your conservative qniet
course and not interfering in matters, and only seeking to have an honest, peaceable,
and exemplary government.” These are nearly his exact words, and they express the
general 1seutiment, and the wish was almost unanimously expressed that'I would be
returned.

Now I care nothing personally about the Dyer letter. It is untrie, and would ex-
hibit me as such a complete simpleton to have acted as it asserts I did, that I have
_prolonged this very iuch too long, for which I ask your indulgence. . I do hope, how-
ever, that it may prove necessary or desirable that the same will be brought about
to investigate the action of the old Guthrie city council, and if ever done it
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will show the worst and most disreputable practices in many respects ever perpo-
trated upon a people, as well as the moet unreasonable and arbitrary power exercised,
In its enforcing law and order preserving peace, and its police powers, I always and
at all times heartily supported it, but in its reckless, unscrupulous, and dishonest
action with the people, its jobbery, and tyrannical powers, exercised, all of which |
can show beyond a doubt, I never at any time indorsed, and always when consulted
upon the questions (not otherwise) condemned. Ikuow the people were with me, and
the election fully sustained the people and condemned the old council.

I inclose herowith a copy of the Guthrie Times, opposed to Mr., Dyer's clection, |
also submit the following part of an editorial of Daily Capital, the leading paper,
which supported Dyer for mayor, of June 5, next morning after election, showing the
feeling of a Dyer paper against the old council:

“It is not the province of this journal to offer gratuitous advice to a man of Colonel
Dyer’s ability aud judgwment, but as a champion of the mayor-elect, and one who
has the welfare of Guthrie at heart, he owes it to himself and the people to institute
certain reforms in the city government. To do this he must read out certain nen
who a}ways expect official recognition after election,

“ He musi shake off the barnacles who have cluug to him and the city government
and who bave attempted to drag the good name of Mayor Dyer and the fair fame of
the city in the gutter, The people have not indorsed any of the unscrupulous mey
who came here and ‘represented States’ without the shadow of law; have not ¢ vin-
dicated’ the men who have attempted to fasten on the people vicious legislation,
nor men whose capacity tor evil scheming bhas far execeded their ambition to serve
the people honestly. Not a vote was cast in favor of any such men yesterday. 1t way
simply a vote cast for Mayor Dyer by men who honestly believed that, with a legually
elected council by the people, that the mayor could drive back the hungry pack of
wolves who always stand ready to fatten on the flesh of the municipal body ; every
vote given was in the hope that, surrounded by a wise council, the mayor would use
his official position to direct the couneil, if error were committed, and to guide with
a'strong hand the destinies of our young city.

¢ Colonel Dyer, you have been vindicated and indorsed. Give us that strong, con-
servative government that we have a right to expect and demand. The people he-
lieve you honest and capable. To those men who have attempted to drag you down
to their level and cast odium on the city, say: ‘Stand back, gentlemen ; this is a
new deal.. Iam backed by the people, and I am going to do their will.””

I also submit an item from same paper of June —, the day I left:

¢ Major Pickler leaves to-day for Faulkston, Dak., on the Sioux Reservation. No
Federal officer in Oklahoma is better known than Major Pickler, and certainly ne
man ranks higher in popularity with the citizens of Guthrie, In his new ficld of
usefulness we hope the major inay meet with the same kind and congenial friends he
has been swrrounded with here; and he carries with him to his new field of labor the
best wishes of The Capital and the citizens of Guthrie, regardless of party politics.”

Now, general, I would not, ay I know I shonld not, have inflicted this lTong pro-
{luct‘ion, upon you, except for the outrageous and false attack made upon me in the
etter.

I sincerely thank you for your letter to Dyer, I shall ever strive to merit it,

Yours, traly, 5 W1
. W, Preknin,

Hon. Joun W, NoBLx,
Washington, D, C,



